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INTRODUCTION BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
 
Performance Review for the Quarter ended March 2021 
 
It gives me great pleasure to present this report of the fourth quarter 
covering the period 1st January to 31st March 2021. 
 
Core Services (Collective Bargaining Services and Dispute 
Management Services) 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: National recorded 100% for the 
period under review. This is a significant improvement compared to 
the 83% achieved in the fourth quarter of the 2019/20 financial 
period. 
 
The fourth quarter started on a sombre note for the Council, as it lost 
two long serving employees, the Senior Manager: Collective 
Bargaining Services and the Provincial Manager: KwaZulu-Natal. 
 
Council adopted the Addendum to DBE Circular 01 of 2021: “The 
Return of Educators and Support Staff to Schools for the 2021 
Academic Year Amidst Covid-19 Pandemic”, at the Special 
Bargaining meeting held on 12th February 2021, for the purposes of 
providing clarity on certain provisions of the circular. 
 
The Strategic Planning and Budget workshop was held on 18th 
February 2021, where the Strategic Plan, Annual Performance Plan 
and Budget for the 2021/22 financial year was duly adopted. The 
workshop also identified items to be placed on the management plan 
for Bargaining. 

The TVET Bargaining Council also adopted the “Guidelines for the 
Return to Work by College TVET Staff and Student In 2021”, during 
the period under review. Special TVET Bargaining meetings and 
Technical TVET Task Team meetings were also convened to discuss 
the Public College Administration Measures (PCAM) and the 
Lecturer Laptop Policy.  
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial  
 
The performance of the provincial chambers improved considerably 
during the period under review, compared to the performance 
recorded in the fourth quarter of the 2019/20 financial period.  
 
Five provinces achieved 100%, namely Eastern Cape; Gauteng; 
North West, KwaZulu-Natal and Northern Cape.  
 
It is noteworthy that that four provinces that did not achieve 100%, 
recorded performance above the 80% mark.  
 
The Mpumalanga Chamber recorded 83%, which is a significant 
improvement in performance compared to the 33% achieved in the 
fourth quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.  The Report on the 
Maths, Science and Technology Academy was not received by 
Chamber. Two reports will be presented to Chamber in the first 
quarter of the 2021/22 financial year, to cover the deviation. 
 
The Report on Curriculum and Examinations has been deferred to 
the next meeting of the Chamber. 
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The Limpopo Chamber recorded 88%, which is a miniscule decline 
in performance compared to the 89% achieved in the fourth quarter 
of the 2019/20 financial year. Party representatives had other 
commitments on the dates set for the meetings to present the report 
on curriculum and examinations.   
 

The Free State Chamber recorded 81%, which is a decline in 
performance, compared to the 100% achieved in the fourth quarter 
of the 2019/20 financial year. The Equity Forum Coordinator retired 
in the quarter under review and the report on the functionality of the 
Equity Forum was not presented. A report would be submitted once 
the post is filled. 
 

The Western Cape Chamber recorded 80%, this is a decline in 
performance, compared to the 100% achieved in the fourth quarter 
of the 2019/20 financial year.  Due to COVID-19, the Nine-Point Safe 
Schools planning process could not be implemented since schooling 
was on a rotational basis.  
 

The unachieved targets have been included in the adopted Annual 
Performance Plan for 2021/22. 
 
Detailed reports of the nine Chambers are attached. 
 
Dispute Management Services 
 
The ELRC received a total of 279 disputes during the period under 
review. A total of 590 events were conducted, of these 590 were 
events/processes, 163 were conciliations and 427 were arbitration 
events. A total of 76 arbitration awards were rendered. 
 

The ELRC finalised 154 disputes during the period under review.  A 
total of 37 cases were postponed for the period under review and 45 
adjournments took place.  
 
Cases referred to the first quarter of the 2021/22 financial year   
 
A total of 313 cases from previous financial years are to be carried 
over to the first quarter of the 2021/22 financial year.  
 
Cases from previous financial years   
 
Of the 313 cases, 206 are from the 2020/21 financial year, 89 are for 
the 2019/20 financial year, while 18 cases are from previous years 
and remain unresolved.   
 
Practitioners Professional Development 
 
The Council conducted professional training of Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners (Employee Representative) in the Eastern Cape on 
Collective Agreement No. 3 of 2018 on 12th March 2021. 
 
The Council also trained intermediaries on Child Witness and the 
Arbitration hearing as follows: 

 Session 1 on 16th March 2021 

 Session 2 on 23rd March 2021 
 
Risk Management 
 
The ELRC recognise the importance of risks and threats faced by the 
organisation, at strategic and operational level, hence management 
continues to proactively review and manage the risks identified in the 
Risk Register. The risks held under the Key Register are those 
viewed as potential threats to the delivery of the overarching 
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objectives for the whole Council, whereas the Operational Risk 
Register houses those risks which affect the organisation at the 
business unit level. 
 
Management has put systems in place to monitor and review the risk 
management process, the results are recorded and reported 
quarterly. The results are also an input on the review and continuous 
improvement of the ELRC's risk management framework. For the 4th 
quarter, significant changes to the risk residual scores were reported, 
including archived risks. The risks with medium to high residual 
scores will be rolled over to the new financial year to ensure 
continuous monitoring and put in place additional controls.  
 
Mobilising Employee Services 
 
Employee wellness 
 
Employee wellness is essential to organisational success. It impacts 
the workplace culture and organisational resources and productivity.  
 
To ensure continuous employee wellness, staff members were 
provided with financial fitness guidelines through a workshop 
conducted by FNB. This was done to assist staff to manage their 
finances in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Training and Development 
 
The Council recognises that training presents a prime opportunity to 
expand the knowledge base of all employees. Employees who are 
competent and on top of changing industry standards, ensures that 
the Council retains its position as an industry leader. 
 

One employee attended a Leadership Programme during the period 
under review. 
 
Research & Media 
 
As part of the Council increased its visibility through regular postings 
on its social media platforms throughout the quarter, as part of its 
marketing campaign 
 
The Council’s two external publications on its core functions: Labour 
Bulletin and New Negotiator, were published and disseminated 
during the period under review.  
 
The two late ELRC employees and other Council members who 
passed on in the period under review were honoured in the two 
publications.  
 
Information Technology 
 
IT Governance forms an integral part of the Council’s business. 
Achievement of IT Governance objectives is monitored through 
quarterly risk review meetings attended by the Risk Management 
Committee. The monitoring and achievement of IT Governance 
objectives is facilitated through this forum where appropriate IT risks 
and related business objectives are attended to. 
 
Quarterly testing of the Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) was 
conducted in the quarter under review to ensure business continuity.  
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Conclusion  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Ms NO Foca 
General Secretary, ELRC  
 

The Council recorded an overall performance rate of 94%, which is 
a major improvement in performance compared to the 72% achieved 
in the fourth quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.  
 
This report is submitted to the Registrar of Labour in terms of section 
54 of the Labour Relations Act (LRA) 66 of 1995 (as amended). 
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PROGRAMME 1              COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: NATIONAL  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 1 is to contribute to the Council’s vision of a strengthened social contract between government, teacher unions and 
civil society that helps to create a conducive environment for improved quality in teaching and learning.  Such is done by promoting collective 
bargaining at national and provincial levels so as to ensure the development of effective policies for quality public education in a non-disruptive 
environment for teaching and learning. 
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Collective Bargaining (Provincial) 

 Research Services 

 Dispute Prevention Support Services 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To facilitate bargaining on identified matters of mutual interest in public education.  

 To administer research programmes on identified issues for research on evidence based teacher welfare and national development.  

 To facilitate dispute prevention support services through providing effective administrative functions to shop stewards.  
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Collective Bargaining 

Schedule bargaining 

meetings where 

agreed matters of 

mutual interest, as 

identified on the 

management plan, 

would be tabled, 

including the 

conclusion of the Vote 

Weights Collective 

Agreement 

Matters of mutual interest in 

public education are identified 

and tabled at Bargaining 

Meetings, including the 

conclusion of Collective 

Agreement on Vote Weights 

Bargaining meeting 

scheduled to attend 

to matters of mutual 

interest identified for 

the fourth quarter 

Achieved 
 
Meetings held: 
Special Bargaining 
meeting – 9th February 
2021 
Special Bargaining 
meeting – 12th February 
2021 
Bargaining meeting – 25th 
March 2021 
 

None   

n/a n/a n/a n/a This is an annual 
target that only relates 
to the first quarter of 
the 2020/21 financial 
year 

To monitor dispute 

prevention task team 

meetings convened at 

provincial level 

Receive reports from 

Provincial Chambers on 

dispute prevention task teams, 

identify areas of concern and 

conduct workshops to address 

matters on a quarterly basis 

n/a 

 

n/a n/a n/a The target was 
removed from the APP 
during the mid-term 
review. 

Training and advocacy 

on the implementation 

of Collective 

Agreements and 

policies 

Conducting training and 

advocacy on the recently 

revised policies and signed 

collective agreements to 

parties to Council 

n/a n/a n/a n/a This is an annual 
target that only relates 
to the first quarter of 
the 2020/21 financial 
year 

Schedule technical 

and Vocational 

Education and 

Training (TVET) 

bargaining meetings 

Agreed matters of mutual 

interest in higher education 

are concluded successfully in 

bargaining meetings 

TVET Bargaining 

meeting scheduled 

to attend to matters 

of mutual interest 

Achieved 
 
Meetings held: 
Urgent TVET Bargaining 
meeting – 15th January 
2021 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: National 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

where agreed matters 

of mutual interest 

would be tabled 

identified for the 

fourth quarter 

Special TVET Bargaining 
meeting – 23rd February 
2021 
Special TVET Bargaining 
meeting – 2nd March 2021 
 

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
During the period under review Collective Bargaining Services mourned the passing of Mr D Singh (Provincial Manager KwaZulu-Natal) and Mr 
F Moloisi (Senior Manager: CBS). 
 
Council adopted the Addendum to DBE Circular 01 of 2021: “The Return of Educators and Support Staff to Schools for the 2021 Academic Year 
Amidst Covid-19 Pandemic”, at the Special Bargaining meeting held on 12th February 2021, for the purposes of providing clarity to certain 
provision of the circular. 
 
The Strategic Planning and Budget workshop was held on 18th February 2021, which was attended by the Executive Committee and Finance 
Sub Committee.  The Strategic Plan, Annual Performance Plan and Budget for the 2021/22 financial year was duly adopted by the Executive 
Committee at its Special meeting held on 18th February 2021.  The workshop also identified items to be placed on the management plan for 
Bargaining. 
 
Council adopted the management plan at the Bargaining meeting held on 25th March 2021. 
 
During the period under review the TVET Bargaining Council adopted the “Guidelines for the Return to Work by College TVET Staff and Student 
In 2021” at the Urgent Special TVET Bargaining meeting held on 15th January 2021.  There were also Special TVET Bargaining meetings and 
Technical TVET Task Team meetings convened to discuss the PCAM and the Lecturer Laptop Policy.  
 
 
 
 



 

10 
 

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
None. 

 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget Actual Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

 Collective Bargaining Services R’000 R’000 R’000 

National 5,602 3,451 2,151 

CBS: Provincial 1,086 612 473 

Governance Support Services 91 14 77 

Total 6,779 4,077 2,701 
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PROGRAMME 1.1   COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES: PROVINCIAL 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of the provincial chambers is to promote collective bargaining at provincial level to ensure the development of effective 
policies for quality public education in a non-disruptive environment for teaching and learning. 
 

Eastern Cape 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target for 
4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A report on the consultation 
process for post provisioning is 
available and presented in 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (4)  
 

 
 
 

 

Consolidated report on the 
distribution of post 
provisioning for 2022 received 
and analysed by the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on the 
distribution of posts is 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 18th March 2021 
 

None  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Employee Health and Wellness 
(EHW) 
Monitor the introduction and 
implementation of Employee 
Wellness activities and report 
presented in Chamber meeting 

Reports (4) Evaluation of the performance 
of the Employee Health and 
Wellness Committee and 
implementation of 
programmes for 2021. 
A report presented at the 
Chamber meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on the 
Employee Health and 
Wellness Committee is 
received and tabled at 
the Chamber meeting 
of 18th March 2021 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target for 
4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Teacher Development 
Monitoring reports on provision of 
teacher development programmes 
presented in Chamber meeting.  

Reports (4)  
 
 

 

 

 

Assess the impact and 
implementation of the 
programmes adopted for 
2021/22.  
A report tabled at the 
Chamber meeting.  

Achieved 
 
A report on the impact 
and implementation of 
programmes is 
received and 
presented in the 
Chamber meeting of 
18th March 2021 
 

None  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring reports on the 
categories and status of the 
Grievances, Misconduct and 
Disputes lodged presented in 
Chamber meeting 
 

Reports (4) 
 

Evaluate the impact of the 
interventions made. 
A report tabled at the 
Chamber meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on the 
evaluation of the 
impact of interventions 
made was received 
and presented in the 
Chamber meeting of 
18th March 2021 
 

None   

Incentives for Educators 
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of incentives for 
educators are available and 
presented to Chamber meeting. 

Reports (4)  
 

Analytic report presented and 
adopted by the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on the 
incentives for 
educators was 
received and 
presented at the 
Chamber meeting of 
18th March 2021 
 

None   

Recruitment and Filling of Posts 
Monitoring reports on the 
recruitment and filling of posts 
presented to Chamber meeting. 

Reports (4)   
 

Evaluation of the recruitment 
processes for the year 2021 
 
Report tabled at the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report on the 
evaluation of the 
recruitment processes 
for the year 2021 was 
received and 
presented at the 
Chamber meeting of 
18th March 2021 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Eastern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target for 
4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Rationalisation, Realignment, 
Merger and Closure of Small 
Schools 
Monitoring reports on the 
Rationalisation, Realignment, 
Merger and Closure of Small 
Schools and presented to the 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (4)  Analyse and evaluate the 
report on Rationalisation, 
Realignment, Merger and 
Closure of Small Schools. 
A report tabled at the 
Chamber meeting 

Achieved 
 

A report on the 
evaluation of the 
rationalisation, merger 
and closure of small 
schools was received 
and tabled in the 
Chamber meeting of 
18th March 2021 
 

 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  
 
Dispute Prevention – 22nd February 2021: 
 
The Employer presented the fourth quarter statistics on the disputed being declared in the last quarter as follows: 

 
The most common disputes being declared in the last quarter being: 

 

 Unfair Labour Practice for Benefits = 6 

 ULP Promotions = 5 

 Unfair dismissals = 5 

 Collective Agreement No. 1/2012 – Interpretation or Application – 3 
 
Employee Health and Wellness – 22nd February 2021: 
 
The Employer presented the report on the four Pillars of Employee Health and Wellness Programmes being: 

 

 HIV/AIDS and TB Management 
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 Health and Productivity Management 

 Safety Health Environment Risk Quality Management (SHERQ) 

 Wellness Management 
 
The Department gave a detailed report on Covid-19 with regard to: 
 

 Return to work according to Instruction Note 53 

 Statistics 

 Support given 

 Challenges 

 
Teacher Development – 23rd February 2021: 
 
The Department presented the Programmes for the year 2020/21 under the following headings: 
 
Human Resource Development (HRD) on:   

 

 Critical / Scarce Skills  

 IQMS 

 QMS 

 Skills Development 

 Bursaries / Internships and Learnerships  
 

Education Language Policy: 
The Department also gave a report on Education Language Policy. The Unit wanted Parties to come up with possible intervention mechanisms 
to serve as a long-lasting solution. 

 
Provincial Teacher Development Institutes (PTDIs): 
The Department gave a report on PTDIs for the following Institutes: 

 

 Queenstown were 196 
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 Nelson Mandela Metro were 578 

 Mthatha were 357 

 Mandla Makupula were 487 

 
The Department gave a report on Quality Promotions and Standards on the following:  

 

 Quality Promotions and Standards Activities 

 Nine (9) Areas for Evaluation 

 Whole School Evaluation Activities 

 Whole School Development Activities 

 Quality Education Outcomes Programmes (QEOP) as a new programme. 

Incentives – 24th February 2021: 
 
The Department tabled the report on Incentives and indicated:  
 

 That there was 83.5% of Budget spent 

 That there were 7 539 Educators in District Task Teams (DTT) select Rural Schools of which: 
 

o 7 096 received payment (94.1%) 

o 443 outstanding payments 

o 27 exception payments (not on DTT select schools) 

Staffing for the Recruitment and Filling of posts – 24th February 2021: 
 

The Department of Education reported on the post filled from January to December 2020 on the four bulletins that were issued: 
 

Bulletin Volume Posts Date issued Closing date Amount 

1 of 2020 Principals  29 January 2020  24 February 2020  124 

2 of 2020  Deputy Principals  29 January 2020  24 February 2020  543 

3 of 2020  Grade R  11 February 2020  20 March 2020  311 
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Bulletin Volume Posts Date issued Closing date Amount 

4 of 2020  Principals  10 November 2020  30 November 2020  270 

TOTAL     1248 

 
Filling of posts in Districts: 

Bulletins  Filled Not filled Total 

Volume 1 of 2020 72 16  

Volume 2 of 2020  353 83 436 

Volume 3 of 2020  160 94 254 

Volume 4 of 2020  104 Blank 104 

 
 The reasons for not filling the posts were given 

 The database of Schools not filled was provided to Unions 

 That there would be a bulletin to be issued by the end of March 2021 

 Districts were requested to verify the bulletin. 

 
The Department informed the meeting that the outstanding information would be submitted by Friday, 26th February 2021. That the Department 
would ask for more information on the reasons for not filling in the posts and Staffing of District Offices  
 
Rationalisation, Realignment, Merger and Closure of Small Schools – 22nd October 2020: 
 
The Department tabled the updated report and Parties were expected to give an assessment of the Workshop on the rationalisation of schools, 
the Terms of Reference for the Task Team and the Guiding document for the rationalisation of schools. 
 
There were two people present in the meeting and SADTU raised that the work was too much for the two people and this was seconded by the 
Department. Another meeting was then rescheduled for 4th March 2021.  
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Post Provisioning for PPN 2021: 
 
The Department presented reports on the following: 
 
 Characterisation of the Implementation report in the period with regard to additional educators 

 The Role of the PTT on PPN 2021/22 posts 

 Actual implementation report. 

The Department further presented recommendations on: 
 

 The Head of Department to establish a Project to ensure Identification and Placement of additional educators 

 The Districts to provide on-site or actual vacancies 

 The PTT to discuss and adopt the contents of the 6 Point Plan proposals 

 The Department to present the plan to Treasury in preparation for the new PPN 2022 consultation cycle. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
None. 
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Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Eastern 
Cape 

124 82 42 

Total 124 82 42 
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Free State 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Monitoring of Collective 
Agreement 
Monitor the   implementation of 
recruitment and filling of posts in 
terms of the FS Collective 
Agreement 1 of 2019 as amended 
and   present report to Chamber 

Reports (4) Free State   Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a status report 
on posts advertised and 
filled 
 

Achieved 
 
The report on posts advertised 
and filled in terms of FSCA 1 of 
2019 as amended, was 
presented in the Chamber 
meeting held on 12th March 
2021 
 

None    

Monitor implementation of 37% 
in lieu of benefits 
Report on 37% in lieu of benefits 
for educators employed for less 
than six months is presented to 
Chamber 

Reports  (4) Free State Department of   
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
educators accessing 37% 
in lieu of benefits 

Achieved 
  
The report on educators 
accessing 37% in lieu of 
benefits was presented in the 
Chamber meeting held on 12th  
March 2021 
 

None   

Monitoring Collective 
Agreement 4 of 2018 
Monitor implementation of ELRC 
CA 4 of 2018 and present report to 
Chamber 

Reports (4) Free State   Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
temporary educators 
converted in terms of 
ELRC CA 4 of 2018 

Achieved 
 
The report on temporary 
educators converted in terms of 
ELRC CA 4 of 2018 was 
presented in the Chamber 
meeting held on 12th March 
2021 
 

None   

Post Provisioning Consultation 
Free State Department of 
Education conduct Consultation on 
post provisioning and present 
report to Chamber 

Reports (2)  n/a n/a n/a  This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the 
second and third 
quarters of the 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

2020/21 financial 
year. 
 
 

Monitoring Collective 
Agreement 4 of 2016 
Monitor implementation of ELRC 
CA 4 of 2016 and present report to 
Chamber 

Reports (3) Free State Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a report on 
Placement of Educators 

Achieved 
 
A report on placement of 
educators was presented in the 
Chamber meeting held on 12th  
March 2021 

None   

INFORMATION SHARING   

Monitor functionality of 
Curriculum Forum 
Free State Department of 
Education submit report to 
Chamber on the functionality of the 
Curriculum Forum 
 

Reports (4) Free State Department of 
Education present to  
Chamber a report on the 
functionality of Curriculum 
Forum 

Achieved 
 
The Curriculum Forum report 
was presented in the Chamber 
meeting held on 12th March 
2021 

None    

Monitor the functionality of 
Equity Targets Forum 
Free State Department of 
Education submit report to 
Chamber on the functionality of 
Equity Forum 

Reports (2) Free State Department of 
Education present to 
Chamber a report on the 
functionality of the Equity 
Forum 
 

Not Achieved 
 
 
 
 
 

Report (1) The Equity Forum 
Coordinator 
retired and a 
report was thus 
not presented. A 
report would be 
submitted once 
the post is filled. 
 

 

Policy on Incapacity Leave and 
Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR)  
Monitoring the implementation of 
PILIR 
 
 

Reports (4) Free State Department of 
Education submit to 
Chamber a report on the 
implementation of PILIR 
(Policy on Incapacity 
Leave & Ill - Health 
Retirement) 
 

Achieved 
 
The implementation report on 
PILIR was presented in the 
Chamber meeting held on 12th  
March 2021 

 

None    

Employee Health and Wellness 
(EHW) 
Free State Department of 
Education submit report to 

Reports (3) Free State Department of 
Education submit to 
Chamber a report on the 

Achieved 
 
The Employee Health and 
Wellness report was presented 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Free State 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

chamber on the functionality of 
Employee and Wellness Forum  

functionality of Employee 
and Wellness Forum. 

in the Chamber meeting held on 
12th March 2021 

Integration of Grade R into 
mainstream of Foundation 
Phase 
Monitor progress in the integration 
of Grade R into Foundation Phase 
 

Reports (4) Convene ECD Task Team 
meeting to discuss 
progress on integration of 
Grade R into Foundation 
phase. Task team report 
presented to Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The ECD Task Team report was 
presented in the Chamber 
meeting held on 12th March 
2021 
 

None    

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring reports on the 
categories and status of 
Grievances and Disputes lodged  

Reports (4) Convene task team 
meeting to discuss reports 
on grievances and 
disputes. Task team report 
presented to Chamber. 

Achieved 
 
The Dispute Prevention Task 
Team report was presented in 
the Chamber meeting held on 
12th March 2021 
 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  
 
The Chamber performance has been consistent in relation to the achievement of quarterly targets and concerning other matters of mutual interest 
that formed part of discussions in the quarter under review. Fourth quarter targets have been implemented effectively and the reports summarised 
below were presented in the Chamber for adoption.   
 
Monitoring implementation of FSCA 1 of 2019 
Progress on the filling of Vacancy List 1 of 2020 specified that out of 82 advertised posts, processes pertaining to 37 posts have been concluded, 
and 45 posts are remaining but would be filled as soon as re-advertisement processes are completed and submissions approved.    
 
Monitoring Collective Agreement 4 of 2018 
The Employer presented a progress report on conversions of temporary educators highlighting that reasons for those not qualifying include 
dismissals, resignations, awaiting establishment to open posts and majority of educators not professionally qualified. Statistics relating to 
educators considered for conversion were presented as follows:  
a) Total number of temporary educators against substantive vacant posts - 799 
b) Educators converted in all districts in terms of the agreement - 526 
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c) Number of temporary educators not qualifying to be converted - 273 

 Because of qualifications - 162 

 Against promotional post - 8 

 Outstanding documents/processes - 103 
 
Monitoring implementation of 37% in lieu of benefits 
The statistical report displayed a total of 41 teachers having received 37% in lieu of benefits as at the end of January 2021.  
 
Monitoring implementation of IQMS, QMS and PMDS 
The Employer presented a report in relation to IQMS and QMS as follows:  
The background and context including implementation timelines; QMS training of Principals; mop-up QMS training of Principals, evaluation of 
training by participant Principals; overall feedback by participant Principals; non-participation of Labour in the QMS training of Principals and QMS 
communication to schools.  
 
Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020 has put in place a performance management system for School-based Educators that seeks to enhance 
educator efficiency, effectiveness and professional accountability in relation to teaching and learning. It was communicated in QMS-IQMS Circular 
3/2020 that QMS will be implemented in two phases: 
 

Target Group  Training Timeline  Full Implementation  

Principals  November 2020 - December 2020 January 2021 

Deputy Principals, 
Departmental Heads 
& Educators (PL 1)  

 
January 2021 – December 2021  

 
January 2022  

 
The focus of training was on defining and understanding QMS, roles and responsibilities of role players, guidelines on implementation of QMS; 
performance standards; instruments and work plans; and the purpose was to prepare Principals for the implementation of QMS.  
 
The number of Principals who participated in the QMS training is as indicated below: 

 Xhariep District on 19th November 2020 = 58  

 Lejweleputswa District on 24th November 2020 = 205 

 Fezile Dabi District on 26th November 2020 = 167 

 Motheo District on 1st December 2020 = 276 
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 Thabo Mofutsanyana District from 10th to 16th February 2021 = 303 

 Mop up training was conducted for principals who could not attend in November to December 2020, the total number of trained principals 
increased to 1067 

 
Evaluation of training and overall feedback was submitted by participant Principals. 
 
Non-participation of Labour in QMS Training of Principals was a matter of concern in that: 

 Labour withdrew from the QMS process and did not participate in the QMS training of Principals after participating in the preparations and 
planning for 2020 QMS training 

 SAOU (as part of CTU-ATU) withdrew following a directive from their Head Office and SADTU withdrew at short notice due to financial 
constraints, and only participated in the training of Circuit Managers 

 All attempts to explore the possible return of SADTU to the National Training Team (NTT) / Provincial Training Team (PTT) for participation 
in the QMS training of Principals were spurned by the General Secretary as no response was received following two letters that were 
written to the General Secretary 

 NAPTOSA (as part of CTU-ATU): no reasons were advanced for their absence in relation to participation in NTT/PTT responsible for 
QMS training in the province 

 The non-participation of Labour in the QMS training of Principals begs the question as to the extent to which they are committed to the 
QMS process as signatories to ELRC Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2020 

 It is important to recognise that this matter was also raised as a concern by participant Principals during the QMS training sessions 

 
QMS Circular 1 /2021 was sent to districts officially notifying schools about implementation timelines on signing of Work Plans between Principals 
and Circuit Managers. 
 
Monitoring and support for implementation of IQMS and PMDS was thoroughly reported.  
  
Implementation of Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2016 
Progress reported on the placement of educators showed 195 temporary educators in substantive posts; 70 Funza Lushaka and 25 departmental 
bursary holders; PL1 (46); PL2 (2); PL3 (3) and 47 temporary educators against promotional posts.  
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Monitoring the functionality of Curriculum Forum 

Curriculum Forum recommendations were presented as follows:  
 General improvement across all the grades due to revised promotion and progression requirements, grade 4-9, 80:20; grade 10-11: 

60:40 contribution. 

 Learning losses per subject per grade and the plans to address them. 

 Intensifying monitoring of the conduct of Exams and support of School Based Professional Development activities. 

 Support to General Education & Training (GET) from Exam is gaining momentum and dedicated focus on School Based Assessment 

(SBA) in this band as of 2021, and procurement of laptops for teachers. 

 Grade R Diploma approved and accredited by the University of the Free State (UFS). 

 Progress made towards 2020/21 targets and providing Labour with 2021/22 APP targets.  

Policy on Incapacity Leave and Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR) 
Progress report on Temporary Incapacity Leave for 6 months and above showed six cases in Fezile Dabi; nine in Lejweleputswa; 16 in Motheo; 
eight in Thabo Mofutsanyana and one in Xhariep. 

  
Employee Health and Wellness 
The report highlighted that OHS reps at Head Office and Districts presented reports on the Workplace Inspection and Management of 
Offices/Buildings, and that professional nurses in special schools were identified as Vaccinators and Master Trainers who shall further cascade 
the training to other officials in schools. 
 
Task Teams Meetings  
Task team meetings scheduled in the quarter under review were successfully held and recommendations tabled in chamber for consideration 
and adoption by all the Parties.   
 
Implementation of Incentives Policy  
The department reported that 485 educators received incentives, six did not benefit as they are underqualified and 179 did not receive incentives 
due to terminations or transfers resulting from closure of Farm schools. 
 
Role of QLTC during Covid-19 pandemic   
The QLTC report compiled in line with Covid-19 Regulation Compliance Tool highlighted the following challenges: 
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a) Infrastructural problems especially in ablution facilities 
b) Schools that did not amend policies to include COVID-19 protocols 
c) Teaching time being lost, and learners fall behind with their work 
d) Schooling Rotation System poses challenges towards the National School Nutrition Programme (NSNP) as learners do not receive food if it 

is not their turn to attend classes 
e) Burglaries and vandalism have increased during the COVID-19 period 
f) Training of QLTC Structures relaunched in schools, were not conducted 

 
Interventions and plans have been put in place to address the above challenges. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Equity Forum would be convened once the Coordinator has been appointed.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Free 
State  

138 113 25 

Total 138 113 25 

 

 



 

26 
 

 
Gauteng 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 4th         
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

Information Sharing 

Strategic Planning 
Workshop 
Develop an Annual 
Performance Plan 
(APP) and Budget for 
the next financial year 
(2021/22) and a report 
is received by 
Chamber 
 
 

Workshop (1) Convene a Strategic 
Planning Workshop 
for parties to Chamber 
for the development of 
an Annual 
Performance Plan 
(APP) and Budget for 
the next financial year, 
2021/2022 and a 
report is received by 
Chamber by 31st  
March 2021 
 

Achieved 
 
The target was planned for 
quarter four of 2020/21. The 
strategic planning workshop 
however took place earlier in 
the third quarter on 26th and 
27th November 2020. A report 
was received by Chamber 
meeting held on 4th December 
2020 
  

None    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Safety in Schools 
Summit & Monitoring 
Strategy  
Convene a Safety 
Strategy & Monitoring 
Workshop and a 
report is received by 
Chamber 
 
 

Summit (1) n/a n/a n/a  *This is an annual target 
that only relates to the 
second quarter of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 

Dispute Prevention  
Monitor reports from 
the employer on 
categories of 
misconducts, types, 
nature, status of 
grievances and 
disputes lodged; also, 

Reports (4) Convene a meeting to 
receive reports from 
the employer on 
categories of 
misconducts, types, 
nature, status of 
grievances and 
disputes lodged; also, 

Achieved 
 

The Dispute Prevention Task 
Team meeting was held on 
12th March 2021 to receive 
reports from the Employer on 
categories of misconducts, 
types, nature, status of 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 4th         
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

report is received by 
Chamber  

a report is received by 
chamber by 31st 
March 2021 
 
 

grievances and disputes 
lodged 
 
A report was received and 
ratified by Chamber on 16th 
March 2021 
 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements 

Implementation of 
Collective 
Agreements  
Monitor the 
implementation of 
Collective Agreement 
No. 8 of 2003 on 
Integrated Quality 
Management System 
(IQMS) for School 
Based Educators and 
Collective Agreement 
No. 3 of 2017 on 
Education 
Management Service 
(EMS): Performance 
Management and 
Development System 
(PMDS) For Office 
Based Educators; and 
reports are received 
by Chamber  
 

Reports (4) Facilitate and convene 
a meeting to receive a 
progress report from 
the employer on the 
implementation of 
collective agreements 
on performance 
management. A report 
is received by 
Chamber by 31st  
March 2021 

 

Achieved 
 

The IQMS/EMS PMDS Task 
Team meeting was held on 
22nd February 2021 and 
received a report from the 
Employer on the 
implementation of collective 
agreements on performance 
management.  
 
A report was received and 
ratified by Chamber on 16th 
March 2021 
 
 
 
 

None  None   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Educator 
Resourcing  
Monitor the extent of 
utilisation of temporary 
educators and 
conversion into 
permanent 
appointments based 
on allocated posts 

Reports (4)  An implementation of 
Post Establishments 
and close-up reports 
on placement of 
temporary educators 
against New Post 
Establishments and a 
report is received by 

Achieved 
 

The Educator Resourcing Task 
Team meeting was held on 
10th March 2021.  The 
Employer presented on the 
implementation of the post 
establishment and close-up 
reports on placement of 

None  None  
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Collective Bargaining Services: Gauteng 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter of 
2020/21 

Actual Achievement 4th         
Quarter of 2020/21 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th        
Quarter of 2020/21 

Comment on deviations Status 

through Post 
Provisioning Norms 
(PPN) and reports are 
received by Chamber 
 

Chamber by 31st 
March 2021 

temporary educators against 
new post establishments 
 
A report was received and 
ratified by Chamber on 16th 
March 2021 
 
 

Employee Health & 
Wellness  
Monitor the 
introduction and 
implementation of 
Employee Health & 
Wellness Programs 
and a report is 
received by Chamber. 
 

Reports (4) Facilitate and convene 
a meeting in line with 
the ELRC constitution 
for tabling by the 
employer of 
implementation report 
on the Employee 
Wellness Health & 
Wellness Program 
against set targets. 
Further, an impact 
assessment report is 
also received by 
chamber on the 
effectiveness of these 
programs and a report 
is received by 
chamber by 31st 
March 2021 

Achieved 
 
The Employee Health & 
Wellness Task Team meeting 
was held on 5th March 2021 to 
receive a report from the 
Employer on the 
implementation of the 
Employee Wellness Health & 
Wellness Program against set 
targets 
 
A report was received by 
Chamber on 16th March 2021 
 

None    

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The performance of Chamber during the reporting period was in line with the set targets as contained in the approved Performance Plan (APP) 
for 2020-21. Quarterly targets and other priorities of mutual interests were achieved. A Standing Sub-Committee (STANCO) meeting was held 
on 4th February 2021 and accepted a schedule of meetings for the fourth quarter. The task team reports were presented and ratified by the 
Chamber meeting held on 16th March 2021. Progress of the activities of Chamber during the reporting period is recorded as follows: 
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Dispute Prevention  
 
The Dispute Prevention Task Team met on 12th March 2021. The report presented indicated an analysis of statistics on grievances, disputes, 
and misconduct cases. The report highlighted the following: 

a) Parties to conclude engagements on the Draft Review of Collective Agreement No. 2 of 2005 in respect of the Provincial Appeals 
Committee (PAC). 

b) Organised labour to consult its principals on presentation on Compliance on Schedule 8 of Labour Relations Act (LRA). 
c) The Employer to avail in the next meeting analysis and proposed recommendations on dispute prevention strategies. 
d) On analysis of dispute management, out of 316 grievances, 247 have been finalised which translated into 80% of the completion rate. 

The annual target was set at 85%. Grievances relating to promotion were the highest at 219 of 316 total grievances, which constituted 
66% of the grievances. Of the 247 grievances finalised, 185 cases were promotion related which constituted 72% of the completed 
cases. Unfair treatment was the second highest at 42 and 28 have been finalised. Salary related is at 11 and six were finalised. This 
shows that there is a delay in processing payment which leads to grievances. 

 
Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS)/ Education Management Service (EMS): Performance Management and Development 
System (PMDS)  
 
The IQMS-EMS /PMDS task team met on the 22nd of February 2021. The presented report on IQMS highlighted the following: 
 
The year, 2020, was the year for the evaluation of school-based educators. The IQMS scores for 2020 were recorded as follows: 

 
- Number of educators:  66 835 
- Number of scores and reasons: 847 
- % number scored and no reason:  1, 27% 
 

 The year, 2021, would be the year for the evaluations of school principals.  
 
Educator Resourcing   
 
During the reporting period, one consultative meeting was held on the 10th of March 2021. The report was presented on the draft circular on 
permanent appointment of PL 1 educators/education therapists; filling of office-based posts; update on educator vacancy circulars from 2018 to 
10th March 2021 (outstanding grievances on educator vacancy circulars dating back as far as 2028 was a serious concern); and conversion of 
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temporary educators/education therapists. On conversion of temporary educators/education therapists, the following statistical information was 
highlighted: 

 From January to 10th March 2021, there were about 5 181 temporary PL 1 educators/education therapists.  

 About 1 734 of 5 181 were appointed on normal fixed establishment/vacant substantive posts. The following might qualify after meeting 
requirements: 
 
- Less than 3 months (354); total conversion (149); new entrants awaiting SACE Registration (259); forms not submitted from schools 

(630); and forms being processed (342).  
 

 About 3 337 of the 5 181 were appointed on ad hoc posts/substitute; growth posts etc. They did not meet requirements for conversion.  
Further, 110 also did not meet conversion requirements because they might be foreign educators/unqualified educators.  

 
Parties agreed on the development of a memorandum to curb alleged fraudulent activities and abuses on conversion of temporary 
educators/education therapists. The progress report presented on the recruitment plan 2020/21 for the financial year for filling of posts for office-
based educators, was summarised as follows: 
 

• 161 total office-based educator advertised posts; 20 Chief Education Specialists/Circuit Team Managers; 48 Deputy Chief Education 
Specialists/Cluster leaders; five Education Psychologists and 88 Senior Education Specialists. 

 
Advertised posts for 2020/21 were 161. Total filled were 16; outstanding were 98; in progress were 43 and the success rate was 9.9%. 
 
An update on Educator Vacancy Circulars from 2018 to date. In relation to Vacancy Circular 03/2020 (Educator Promotional and Therapists), 
862 posts were advertised, 232 posts were filled, 15 grievances were outstanding and this translated to a 27% completion rate.  On Vacancy 
Circular 01/2020 (Educator Promotional and Therapists), 940 posts were advertised, 673 filled, 11 grievances outstanding. This is a 72% 
completion rate.  
 
Employee Health & Wellness (EH&W) 
 
The Employee Health & Wellness Task Team met on 5th March 2021. An implementation report was presented on the employee health and 
wellness program against set targets.   
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A total of 429 were identified as top ten presenting for individual self-referral cases managed through a 24 hours support line. The number 
recorded on stress was 154; bereavement 92; trauma 48; COVID -19 at 14; phase of life/adjustment issues 35; anxiety 19; depression 30; suicide 
risks 21; sexual abuse (one) and health related cases were at 15.  
 
Out of a total of 5 800 office-based employees, total infections were 190, total recoveries 183 and seven fatalities, which were recorded since the 
outbreak of COVID-19. A total of 62 were confirmed as school-based educator infections.  
 
Additional achievements:  
 
Monitoring & Evaluation (M & E) 
 
The Special Monitoring & Evaluation Technical Task Team met on the 15th of February 2021. There was also an M&E pilot workshop which took 
place on 2nd March 2021. The meeting and the workshop highlighted the following:   
 

 The implementation management plan and classroom observation tool for the M & E pilot project for quarter four of 2020/21 

 The workshop was for the identified nine secondary schools in the Gauteng West District Head of Departments and educators in 
mathematics and accounting subjects 

 
Educator Development   
 
The Educator Development Task Team met on 11th February 2021 (Special); 15th February 2021 (Special) and 11th March 2021. The Employer 
presented a revised draft of the quarter four teacher training schedule. Further, a revised management plan on the monitoring and evaluation 
pilot project and its recommendations were presented. The issue of ‘Lead Teachers,’ remained a serious concern to organised labour as it was 
not covered by the Personnel Administrative Measures (PAM).  
 
Grade R (Universalisation)  
 
The Special Grade R (universalisation) Task Team meeting was held on 18th February 2021. The Employer presented the revised Grade R 
Practitioners’ training schedules for the fourth quarter four and for the 2021-22 financial year. 
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Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill-health Retirement (PILIR) 
 
The PILIR Task Team meeting was held on 5th March 2021. During the months of October, November, and December 2020, the PILIR Unit 
received and processed 1 201 applications for assessment by the Health Risk Manager. A total of 879 short term incapacity leave applications 
were submitted and 879 applications were finalised; 306 long term incapacity leave applications were submitted for assessment and 306 
applications were finalised; 16 ill-health retirement applications were submitted for assessment and 16 applications were finalised.  The following 
were the most dominating diagnosis: 
 

 Mental and behavioural disorders. 231 applications were assessed at 19%  

 Multisystemic diseases,  188 applications were assessed at 16% 

 Diseases of the Musculo-skeletal system and connective tissue. 168 applications were assessed at 14% 

 
There were also about 36 applications received and processed by independent medical assessments. Further, 70 were total rejections and 1 
2001 applications were received. Approximately 725 substitute appointments were made at an overall cost of R22 266 093.05. 
 
Safety in Schools  
 
The Safety in Schools Task Team met on 8th March 2021.  The report indicated that there were about 122 425 unique applications of Grade 1’s. 
About 133 310 were applications for Grade 8. There were about 41 903 who applied for admission in schools. The challenges related to 
infrastructure and over-crowding. The demand for learning space created opportunity for the emergence of illegal schools, especially in the 
informal settlements.  The report also highlighted that there were community protests which affected schooling, including burglary, vandalism, 
theft to property. Some schools were blockaded for failing to scrap fees as well as unpaid salaries. 
 
Magnet Schools 
 
The Magnet Schools Task Team meeting was held on 24th February 2021. The meeting dealt with the memo on Magnet Schools Learning; 
Teaching and Support Materials (LTSM) Transfer for 2020/21; Magnets Schools Monitoring 2021 and inclusion of performing arts as a subject.  
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Grade 12 Markers 
 
The Grade 12 Markers Task Team meeting was held on 24th February 2021. The Employer presented a report on marking of 2020 combined 
National Senior Certificate and Senior Certificate Examinations; appointment of markers and COVID-19 compliance at marking centres. The 
following were highlights of the meeting: 

 
- Total number of confirmed COVID-19 cases were 16 
- Total number of COVID-19 fatalities from the marking centres were four 
- The Employer was expected to submit a comprehensive written report on payment of markers 

 
Curriculum 
 
The Curriculum Task Team meeting was held on 8th March 2021. The Employer tabled a presentation on Oral Fluency Reading Assessment 
Study 2021 and its proposed management plan. Organised labour was to submit inputs on the Draft Memorandum on Oral Reading Assessment 
and the Management Plan. 
 
Quality Management System (QMS) 
 
The QMS management plan was presented by the Employer on 22nd February 2021, with regard to planning; capacity building; training, and 
implementation. The following were the highlights of the meeting. The following activities were highlighted in the implementation of the collective 
agreement by principals and training of PL 1 educators: 
 
a) Implementation of QMS Collective Agreement by principals by 1st January 2021 
b) Training of newly appointed Principals and final mop-up of principals training from 25th January 2021 to 26th February 2021 
c) Refresher training of the Provincial Training Team (PTT) from 1st to 26th February 2021 
d) Planning for the training of PL 1 – 3 educators from 1st to 19th March 2021 
e) Finalisation of work plans by principals to take place by 26th February 2021 
f) Training of school-based educators (PL 1 – 3) from 1st April to 30th September 2021 
g) QMS implementation by PL 1 – 3 educators by 30th September 2021 
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Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign (QLTC) 
 
The QLTC Task Team meeting was held on 11th March 2021. The purpose of the meeting was to receive an update from the Employer on QLTC 
in Gauteng. The following was the highlight of the meeting: 
 

 The provincial QLTC coordinator is to be appointed as a matter of urgency 

 
A comprehensive report to be tabled by the Employer in the next meeting.  
 
Policies 
 
The Special Policies Task Team meeting was held on 17th February 2021. The Employer presented the Gauteng Department of Education’s 
(GDE) draft human resources policies. Those draft policies were Draft GDE Retention Policy; Draft GDE Bursary Policy; and Draft GDE 
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Policy. The Employer further presented the Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with GDE and 
the unions. The following were the highlights of the deliberations: 
 

 Terms of reference (TOR) of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 

 Revised draft policies to be availed timeously for further engagements 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget  
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Gauteng 

141 62 79 

Total 141 62 79 
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KwaZulu-Natal 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
Facilitate the consultation process 
for Post Provisioning and reports 
presented to Chamber 
 
 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (2) 
 
 
 

n/a n/a n/a  This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first 
and second 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

Incentives for Educators 
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of incentives for 
educators are available and 
presented to Chamber 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (3)  
 
 
 
 

Progress Report from 
Employer received and 
analysed by the Staffing 
task team and presented to 
Chamber in respect of: 
(i) Payment to recipients. 
(ii) Schools which have 
     appealed process 
 

Achieved 
 
A report from the task team on 
the implementation of incentives   
was presented and adopted at 
the Chamber meeting held on 
20th April 2021 

None   

Employee Health and Wellness  
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of Employee 
Health and Wellness Programmes 
are available and presented to 
Chamber 

Reports (4) 
 
 
 

Report by the Employer on 
the implementation of 
health and wellness 
programmes presented 
and analysed by the EHW 
task team and presented 
to Chamber. 

Achieved 
 
A report from the task team on 
the implementation of Employee 
Health and Wellness 
Programmes was presented 
and adopted at the Chamber 
meeting held on 20th April 2021 
 

None   

Teacher Development  
Monitoring reports on 
implementation of new and/or 
existing Teacher Development 
programmes and reports 
presented to Chamber.  

Reports (4) 
 
 

Progress report on the  
implementation of Teacher 
Development programmes 
presented by the Employer 
to the Teacher 
Development task team, 

Achieved 
 
A progress report on the 
implementation of Teacher 
Development Programmes was 
presented and adopted at the 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: KwaZulu-Natal 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th 
Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

 analysed and presented to 
Chamber.  

Chamber meeting held on             
20th April 2021 
  

Dispute Prevention  
Monitor and analyse statistical 
reports presented to Chamber on 
the categories and status of 
Grievances, Misconduct and 
disputes lodged, as well as from 
time to time, adopting new dispute 
prevention strategies. 

Reports (4) 
 

Reports presented by the 
Employer / ELRC to the 
dispute prevention task 
team, analysed and 
presented to Chamber in 
respect of:  
(i) Grievances, Misconduct 
and Disputes statistical 
information.  
(ii) Recommendation/s 
made by the task team 
(whenever applicable) on 
new dispute prevention 
strategies.  

Achieved  
 
A report from the Dispute 
Prevention Task Team was 
presented and adopted at the 
Chamber meeting held on 20th  
April 2021 

 

None    

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The KwaZulu-Natal Chamber report focusses on activities conducted mainly through MS Teams. Notwithstanding all the complexities that 
confronted Chamber ensuing the demise of Mr D. Singh, ELRC Provincial Manager, the Parties continued working tirelessly to ensure that 
Chamber remains functional and implemented objectives in accordance with the Annual Performance Plan for the purpose of maintaining labour 
peace in the KZN education sector.   
 
The comprehensive reports were presented for deliberations in task team meetings convened in the fourth quarter and at the Chamber meeting 
for consideration and adoption by all the Parties. 
 
Staffing Committee – 8th February and 11th March 2021 
 

The Employer presented reports focusing on the following matters:   
 Withdrawal of Circular on Concession  

 Implementation of HRM 61 of 202 
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 Placement of Surplus Educators (CMTT and DTT) and Placement of Surplus Educators at PTT 

 Expedited Processes: Appointment of Level 1 Educators and Proposal to place unplaced surplus educators 

 Payment of Incentives 

 Schools Based Promotion Posts 
 
Withdrawal of Circular on Concession  
 
The Department attempted to align its practices to the directives of DBE Circular No. 1 of 2020 in terms of Application for Concessions for 
educators with comorbidities. DBE Circular No. 2 ceased the operation of DBE Circular No 1/2020, it became necessary that Department withdraw 
its proposed circular and Parties agreed that the intended circular for concessions be withdrawn following the President’s announcement that the 
country will move to Alert Level 1 in terms of COVID regulations. 
 
Implementation of HRM 61 of 2020 
 
The following statistics were presented regarding the Placement of Surplus Educators (CMTT and DTT): 

 
Placement 1 (Phase 1):  

District No of Level 1 Surpluses 
Declared for PTT 

No of SMT Surpluses 
Declared for PTT 

Total 
Surpluses 

No of Level 1 
Placed at PTT 

No of SMT 
Placed at PTT 

Total Remained 
Unplaced after PTT  

AMAJUBA 64 4 68 14 1 53 

HARRY GWALA 91 12 103 62 12 29 

ILEMBE 31 13 44 15 0 29 

KING CETSHWAYO 118 12 130 7 0 123 

PINETOWN 128 19 147 102 12 33 

UGU 96 6 102 24 6 72 

UMGUNGUNDLOVU 120 19 139 28 18 93 
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District No of Level 1 Surpluses 
Declared for PTT 

No of SMT Surpluses 
Declared for PTT 

Total 
Surpluses 

No of Level 1 
Placed at PTT 

No of SMT 
Placed at PTT 

Total Remained 
Unplaced after PTT  

UMKHANYAKUDE 165 14 179 18 10 151 

UMLAZI 44 8 52 2 1 49 

UMZINYATHI 132 14 146 0 10 136 

UTHUKELA 98 4 102 18 0 84 

ZULULAND 310 38 348 4 3 341 

Total 1397 163 1560 294 73 1193 

 

Placement 2 (Phase 2): 
 

District No of Level 1 Surpluses 

Declared for PTT 

No of SMT Surpluses 

Declared for PTT 

Total Surpluses No of Level 1 

Placed at PTT 

No of SMT 

Placed at PTT 

Total Remained 

Unplaced after PTT  

AMAJUBA 50 3 53 9 1 43 

HARRY GWALA 29 0 29 6 0 23 

ILEMBE 16 13 29 2 12 15 

KING CETSHWAYO 111 12 123 25 9 89 

PINETOWN 26 7 33 1 1 31 

UGU 72 0 72 18 0 54 

UMGUNGUNDLOVU 92 1 93 12 1 80 

UMKHANYAKUDE 147 4 151 16 2 133 
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District No of Level 1 Surpluses 

Declared for PTT 

No of SMT Surpluses 

Declared for PTT 

Total Surpluses No of Level 1 

Placed at PTT 

No of SMT 

Placed at PTT 

Total Remained 

Unplaced after PTT  

UMLAZI 42 7 49 26 2 21 

UMZINYATHI 132 4 136 15 3 118 

UTHUKELA 80 4 84 15 4 65 

ZULULAND 306 35 341 22 29 290 

Total 1103 90 1193 167 64 962 

 
Expedited Processes: Appointment of Level 1 Educators 
 
The Department, together with organised labour, reached consensus that learners will be disadvantaged with the non-availability of level 1 
educators if there are unplaced surplus educators. A total of 962 Surplus educators remain unplaced due to a mismatch in curriculum offerings. 
To further complicate the problem, it seemed that it was taking longer to appoint substitute educators in terms of Department processes. In view 
thereof, Parties agreed to an expedited process to appoint substitute educators. The expedited process entailed Principals making their own 
recommendations for appointment to substitute posts for a period to be decided by Parties. To date, 705 substitute educators have been appointed 
through this process. 

 
Proposal to place unplaced surplus educators 
 
The PTT decided that it will be appropriate to protract its existence to accommodate more placements and 962 surplus educators that remain 
unplaced into vacant posts. The next phase of the PTT categorised into 3 steps and the management plan was also presented. 
 
Incentives for educators 
 
The progress report on implementation of incentives for educators was presented and covered under the Staffing Task Team meeting held on 
19th February and 11th March 2021, and the staffing task team report was tabled in the Chamber meeting of 20th April 2021.  
 
The Department also presented the proposal for payment of incentives at the last staffing task team meeting. Labour requested that a comparative 
analysis be provided to consider the Department’s proposal. The following comparative analysis will be deliberated on in the next staffing meeting: 
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DISTRICT ALLOCATION 2020 PPN2021 Difference 

HARRY GWALA 311 311 0 

ILEMBE 1372 1303 -69 

KING CETSHWAYO 1052 973 -79 

UMGUNGUNDLOVU 3 3 0 

UMKHANYAKUDE 887 873 -14 

UMZINYATHI 2423 2318 -105 

ZULULAND 105 105 0 

Total 6153 5886 -267 

 
Schools Based Promotion Posts 
 
The progress report on the Filling of HRM Circular No, 13 of 2020, presented a total number for all the districts:  

 
Implementation of employee Health and Wellness Programmes – 30th March 2021   
 
The Employer presented a detailed report relating to EHW activities conducted in each District:  

 
Management of Referrals 

Self - 
Referrals 

Informal 
Referral 

Formal 
Referral 

Couns
elled  

Health 
Related  

Stress Work Related 
Problem 

Psychological 
Problem 

Financial 
Problem 

Family 
Problem 

Covid-19 
Anxiety 

Depression 

15 19 5 39 2 3 8 4 4 2 1 2 

 
Bereavement Personal 

problem 
Trauma  Marital 

Problem 
Mental 
Health 
Problem 

Substance 
Abuse 

Referred to 
Psychologist 

Referred to 
Debt 
Counsellor 

Referred to 
SANCA 

Refer to Department 
of Social 
Development 

Referred to 
FAMSA 

Referred to 
Employee 
Relations 

1 2 2 2 2 4 10 3 3 2 1 1 

 

Districts No. of Posts 

advertised 

No. of Posts 

withdrawn 

No. of live 

Posts 

No. of Posts 

Placed 

Posts with no suitable 

candidates 

Posts 

outstanding 

Posts with 

grievances 

% Out- 

standing 

TOTAL 982 19 963 871 - 92 - 9.55 
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Employee Health and Wellness Programmes 
Activity Number of attendees 

COVID-19 Testing 59 

COVID-19 Training 216 

EH&W Advocacy  294 

Financial Literacy Workshop 38 

Trauma Debriefing 135 

Eye Wellness Screening 21 

Anxiety Management Workshop 84 

COVID-19 Compliance check up 39 

Distribution of COVID-19 Materials 105 

Leave Management Workshop 32 

TOTAL  1023 

Male Condoms 4500 

Female Condoms  654 

 
Teacher Development Task Team – 4th March 2021 
 
The report provides an update on five teacher development programmes that were conducted during the fourth quarter and presented at the 
Teacher Development Task Team meeting.  
 
Quality Management System Training for principals (Phase1) 
 
At the time of presenting the report at the Task Team meeting, the QMS PTT members trained stood at 350 (86%) out of 405. Districts had 
commenced with the training of principals, some of which had already completed training and the results stood at 5197 (88%) principals trained 
out of 5891. 
 
The Task Team meeting resolved that a meeting of the NTT, PTT members and Teacher Development Task Team be convened to reflect on 
lessons learnt from the rollout of Phase 1 of training, with a view to enhance preparedness for the massive next phase of rollout involving over 
84 000 educators.  
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Jika Imfundo KZNDoE TD/PILO SMT Work Plan 2021 
 
A joint presentation was done by both the PILO Team and Employer on programmes and activities planned for School Management Teams 
(SMTs) on curriculum leadership and management planned for 2021. The work plan and detailed schedule of training of SMTs indicate the details 
of training activities targeting both district SMTs training teams and SMTs themselves who will be trained by those training teams established in 
each district.  
 
Update on Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) work in KZN 
 
A presentation was made by VVOB on the work done thus far in respect of training of circuit managers and the training team comprising Teacher 
Development, Curriculum GET & FET, and Teacher Unions. The presentation reveals that 172 Circuit Managers and 134 training team members 
were trained on PLCs in October 2020. The presentation further unpacks the concept of PLCs, rationale, and benefits thereof, among others. 
 
DBE Coding and Robotics Pilot overview and progress report  
 
A presentation on the Coding and Robotics DBE pilot was made, providing details of the project. It was explained that through this pilot the Basic 
Education Sector intends introducing Coding and Robotics as a subject. The six districts involved in this project are: Amajuba; Zululand; Uthukela; 
Umkhanyakude; King Cetshwayo, and Pine Town. The matters also covered in the presentation include the establishment of the project 
management team, the Steering Committee, the need to resource the identified schools, and the training of teachers of the piloting schools.  
 
Curriculum grades 10 – 12 – Just-In Time (JIT) 
 
A presentation on JIT was made to apprise the Teacer Development Task Team members on the Department’s plan regarding implementation 
of this programme in 2021. The modus operandi of this content and methodology enhancement programme essentially entails that once a quarter, 
teachers are assisted with content and methodology in respect of the work they will teach in that particular term. The Parties appreciated all the 
presentations on the teacher development programmes. 
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Dispute Prevention Task Team – 13th April 2021 
 
The statistics were presented on disputes lodged with ELRC, Grievances and Misconduct cases as follows: 
 

Disputes Referred by Nature: January to March 
2021  

ULP Promo/App = 16, Other ULP =14, Unfair dismissal = 7 
Special dismissal related to abuse of learners = 4 and BCEA = 3   

Total - 44 

In Jurisdiction as per nature: January to March 
2021  

ULP Promo/App =9, Other ULP =12, Unfair dismissal = 5 
Special dismissal related to abuse of learners = 2 and BCEA = 3  

Total - 31 

Out of Jurisdiction as per nature: January to 
March 2021    

ULP Promo/App = 7, Other ULP   = 2, Unfair dismissal = 2 and 
Special dismissal related to abuse of learners = 2   

Total - 13  

Processes Conducted: January to March 2021  Conciliation/Pre-Arbitration =  26 
Arbitration =   91 

Total - 117 

Disputes finalised by outcome: January to March 
2021  

Withdrawn Con = 3, Withdrawn Arb =  2, Dismissed Arb =  2 
Settled Arb =  2, Award = 15, Rulings = 4 and Special Award = 3    

Total - 31 

Arbitrations heard in the period: January to 
March 2021    

2020/2021 = 51, 2019/2020 = 31 and 2018/2019 =10     Total - 92                

 

Cases carried over from previous period 2020/2021 = 47, 2019/2020 = 16   2018/2019 = 4 Total - 67 

Postponements and adjournments:  
Jan – March 2021 

Postponements = 7 Total - 7 

 
Grievance statistics were presented as follows: 
 
HRM 61 PPN Grievances (specifically regarding grievances that have arisen from PTT placements)  

 
DISTRICT STATISTICS 

UGU 3 

ZULULAND 1 

UMKHANYAKUDE 5 

HARRY GWALA 6 

TOTAL 15 
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In terms of HRM 61 of 2020, the Provincial Task Team met in the months of February and March 2021. A total of 16 grievances were lodged 
because of dissatisfaction with the PTT placement. In terms of the provisions of the procedure manual, aggrieved educators are directed to follow 
the normal grievance produces of Annexure E as contained in the manual. HRM 61 dictates that the grievances must be referred to the Employee 
Relations Directorate within the District.  
 
Misconduct and suspension cases 
 
A: Misconduct 
 
Type of offence Non finalised 

previous cases  
New cases for 
this quarter 

Total Finalised cases 
this quarter 

Not yet 
finalised 

Finalised within 
90 days  

Challenges/ 
 Remarks  

Fraud/ theft  25 0 25 7 18 0  

Social Grant 
Misconduct 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

Misuse of state 
property   

2 0 2 
 
 

1 1 0  

Insubordination 36 0 36 10 26 0  

Absenteeism 6 0 6 2 4 0  

Sexual harassment 31 2 33 6 27 0  

Under influence of 
alcohol/ drugs 

0 0 0 0 0 0  

Assault 
 

11 1 12 1 11 0  

Other:   39 0 39 4 35 0 
 

  

TOTALS  150 3 153 31 122    

 
Precautionary suspensions - One case of suspension was reported in this quarter. 
 
 



 

46 
 

Total Number of employees on 
precautionary suspension   

Number of precautionary suspensions 
finalised/uplifted  

Financial Implication for the 
quarter  

Total Financial Implication  

54 5  R10  572 066.75 R 39 038 755 

 
B: Grievances 
 
Office based grievances - Provincial Grievance Committee 
 
There were approximately 15 cases lodged with the PGC regarding office-based posts and four grievances related to the filling of public service 
posts. In the absence of a collective agreement to address these grievances, they were also dealt with by the PGC and resolved within a 14-day 
period. Outstanding grievance relates to public service posts and a submission was made to the Head of Department to finalise it. 

 
Number of grievances carried over unresolved/ not finalised 
from previous ¼ 

19 

Number of grievances received 
 

124 

Number of grievances resolved/ finalised 
 

86 

Number of grievances remaining unresolved 
 

38 

Number of grievances referred to PSC 
 

NIL 

Number of grievances referred to Bargaining Council NIL 

 
Reinstatement applications (deemed dismissal – Section 14) 
 
The Employer stated that three cases were reported and finalised. Of the three cases, two applications for reinstatement were upheld and one 
was dismissed. These employees had exhausted external remedies afforded by the Courts and the ELRC dispute resolution mechanism. 
Applicants were unsuccessful until they applied provisions arising in the Phenithi judgement, read in conjunction with dictum of Judge Andre van 
Niekerk.  
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Case law discussions  
 
The Parties discussed and indicated the need for committee members to be empowered in terms of new laws and regulations as laws are 
continuously changing. Parties agreed that the Employer will prepare a discussion document on how to avoid unnecessary suspensions and the 
extended period of precautionary suspensions is to be discussed at the HR Summit scheduled from 6th to 7th May 2021. 
 
Government Gazette 44433  
 
The Parties agreed that Government Gazette 44433 shall be dealt with and find expression at the HR Summit and to consider some form of an 
extensive workshop around the amendments to ensure that all the educators are capacitated on the contents. 

 
STANCO Meeting – 6th April 2021 
 
The report of STANCO was presented focusing on matters deliberated on and decisions taken at the meeting. The Parties adopted the 
recommendations with emphasis that both the Strategic Plan Workshop and HR Summit must be convened as decided according to the dates in 
the KZN Chamber Meeting Calendar for the first quarter of the 2021-2022 financial year. 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  

 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned target  

 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: 
KwaZulu-Natal 

166 71 95 

Total 166 71 95 
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Limpopo 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 
Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Human Resources 
Management (HRM) 
Monitoring HR reports on the 
provisioning of Human 
Resources and reports 
presented in Chamber 
meetings 
 

Reports (4)  Report on the 
implementation of the 
post establishment is 
tabled and discussed in 
the Chamber meeting  

Achieved  
 
The report on the implementation 
of the post establishment was 
tabled and discussed in the 
Chamber meeting held on 26th 
March 2021 
 
 

None   

Rationalisation of schools    
Monitoring in Chamber, the 
LDoE’s HRM reports in the 
chamber meeting on the 
rationalisation of schools 

Reports (3)  Receive and analyse 
reports in the chamber 
meeting on the 
rationalisation of schools  

Achieved 
 
HRM reports on the rationalisation 
of schools were tabled and 
discussed in the Chamber meeting 
held on 26th March 2021 
 

None   

PILIR (Policy on Incapacity 
Leave and Ill-health 
Retirement)  
Monitoring in Chamber, the 
LDoE’s HRM reports on the 
processing of PILIR referrals 
 

Reports (3)  A report on the 
processing of PILIR 
referrals is tabled and 
discussed in the 
Chamber meeting  

Achieved  
 
The report on the processing of 
PILIR referrals was tabled and 
discussed in the Human Resource 
Management subcommittee 
meeting held on 5th March 2021 
and then adopted in the Chamber 
meeting held on 26th March 2021 
 

None   

Incentivised posts 
Reports on the payment of 
incentives for educators are 
available and presented to 
Chamber  

Reports (4)  A report on the payment 
of incentives to 
educators in qualifying 
posts is tabled by the 
Employer party and 

Achieved  
 
A report from the STANCO on the 
payment of incentives to educators 
in qualifying posts was tabled and 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

discussed in the 
Chamber meeting  
 

discussed in the Chamber meeting 
held on 26th March 2021 

Employee Safety, Health 
and Wellness 
Monitoring the 
implementation of Employee 
wellness programmes and 
reports presented in Chamber 

Reports (3)  A report on monitoring of 
the implementation of 
Employee Safety Health, 
and wellness programs 
is tabled and discussed 
in Chamber 
 

Achieved 
 
The report from STANCO on 
monitoring of the implementation 
of Employee safety, Health and 
wellness programs was tabled and 
discussed in the Chamber meeting 
held on 26th March 2021 
 

None   

Dispute Prevention  
Monitor reports on the 
categories and status of 
grievances and disputes 
lodged and reports are 
presented in Chamber 
quarterly 

Reports (4)  Receive, discuss and 
analyse reports on the 
trends of grievance and 
disputes in the Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
The report on the trends of 
grievance and disputes was 
received and discussed in the 
Dispute Prevention Sub-
Committee meeting held on 8th 
March 2021 and later adopted in 
the Chamber meeting held on 26th 
March 2021 
 

None   

Educators Performance 
management  
Monitor the implementation of 
performance management 
instruments and present 
reports in the Chamber 
meeting 
 

Reports (3)  Monitor and analyse 
reports on the 
implementation of 
performance 
management 
instruments in the 
Chamber meeting  

Achieved 
 
The reports on the implementation 
of Educators performance 
management instruments was 
tabled and adopted in the 
Chamber meeting held on 26th 
March 2021 
 

None   

Curriculum and 
examinations  
Monitor the implementation of 
curriculum policies and the 
management of examinations 
and reports are presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (3)  A report on the 
management of the 
examinations and 
curriculum policies is 
tabled by the Employer 
and analysed in the 
Chamber meeting  

Not Achieved 
 

Report (1) Party representatives 
had other commitments 
on the dates set for the 
meetings. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Limpopo 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th Quarter Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comments on 
deviations 

Status 

 
 

Capacity building 
programmes 
Monitor capacity building 
prtogrammes for negotiators 
as well as circuits and 
districts sub-committee 
members 
 

Reports (2) n/a n/a   This is a bi-annual 
target that only 
relates to the first 
and second 
quarters of the 
2020/21 financial 
year. 

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
Chamber achieved most of the targets it set for itself in five Sub-Committee meetings, three task teams and one Chamber meeting. Chamber 
also achieved additional objectives in one of the above-mentioned subcommittee meetings. All these meetings were well attended and held online 
via the Zoom platform. Parties to Chamber further implemented the management plan for the training of educators on the QMS. Secondary school 
principals were trained in 2021. Parties agreed in Chamber that the next cohort to be trained on QMS viz: the Deputy Principals, will be clubbed 
together with Departmental heads. The Post level 1 educators will be trained separately. There was only one target viz: Curriculum and 
examinations, which was not achieved. 
 
Chamber discussed and adopted the reports on the following items:  
 
The management plan for the implementation of the 2021 schools’ post establishments 
 
Chamber received the report on the management plan for the implementation of the 2021 schools’ post establishments which reflected that:  
Out of the 13 Principals who were additional to their schools’ staff establishments, three were absorbed into vacant posts. 
 
Of the 36 Deputy Principals who were additional to their schools’ staff establishments, 13 were absorbed into vacant posts, 110 Departmental 
heads were identified as additional to their schools’ staff establishments and 42 of them were absorbed into vacant posts. Out of the 843 Principals 
who were additional to their schools’ staff establishments, 301 were absorbed into vacant posts. A total of 643 educators were still additional to 
their staff establishments. 
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The payment of incentives (Rural allowance) for qualifying educators  
 
The Employer reported that 79 cases on incentives (Rural allowance) for qualifying educators were finalised from the combined total of 81 
applications received from Capricorn North, Sekhukhune East and Sekhukhune South districts. 
 
Dispute Prevention 
 
a) The total number of grievances handled = 11 
b) Total number of grievances finalised = 7 
c) Total number of grievances finalised within 30 days = none 
d) Total number of grievances finalised outside 30 days = 7 
e) Total number of grievances pending = 4 
f) Total number of conciliations = 7 
g) Total number of conciliations finalised = none 
h) Total number conciliations pending = 7 
i) Total number of arbitrations = 28 
j) Total number of arbitrations finalised = 8 
k) Total number arbitrations pending = 20 
 
Rationalisation and merging of schools 
 
An additional total of 23 schools were reportedly merged this quarter to take the tally of merged schools to 359. Eleven merged schools were 
moved to new receiving sites to take the tally to 183. One school was closed in Mopani West and the total of closed schools was 43.  
 
Additional achievements: 

 
Progress on the appointment of educators produced by Funza Lushaka  
 
A total of 492 Funza Lushaka bursary beneficiaries were allocated to Limpopo. Twelve of them were placed at schools. A total of 490 had not 
been placed. Parties agreed that in the next meeting the Employer would report on the 113 that were outstanding/not placed in the previous 
quarter.  
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QMS training 
 
The training of circuit managers and most school principals was completed. Training of deputy principals, Departmental Heads and PL1 educators 
would be done starting in April 2021. 
  
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance:  

The Provincial Manager was in the process of liaising with Chief negotiators to ensure that in the event standing members of the Sub-Committee 
are not available to attend the meeting, their substitutes are there to attend and ensure that postponements of meetings are minimised. 
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes to planned targets.   
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Limpopo 

132 69 63 

Total 132 69 63 
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Mpumalanga 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post-Provisioning 

A report on the 

consultation process 

for post-provisioning is 

available and tabled in 

Chamber 

 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (3) 

Reports on posts 

provisioning norms are 

received from the 

employer and analysed 

by Chamber 

Achieved 

 

Chamber Meetings of 26th 

February 2021 and 25th March 

received and analysed reports 

on post provisioning norms 

 

None    

Employee Health and 

Wellness 

Monitor the 

introduction and 

implementation of 

Employee Health and 

Wellness activities and 

present reports to 

Chamber 

Reports (4) Presentation on 

introduced and 

implemented Employee 

Health and Wellness 

Programs in Chamber 

meeting 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March received a presentation 

on introduced and 

implemented programs 

None    

Teacher 

Development 

Monitoring reports on 

provisioning of 

Teacher Development 

Programs and reports 

presented to Chamber 

 

Reports (2) A comprehensive report 

on implementation of 

educator developmental 

programs presented to 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 was presented 

with a comprehensive report 

on implementation of educator 

developmental programs 

None    

Incentives for 

Educators 

 Monitoring reports on 

the implementation of 

incentives for 

educators are 

Workshop (1) 
 
Reports (3) 

Analytic report received 

and presented to 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

An analytic report was 

received and presented to 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

available and 

presented to Chamber 

 

Dispute Prevention 

Monitoring the 

implementation of a 

strategy to minimize 

the level grievances, 

misconduct and 

disputes lodged 

presented to Chamber 

Reports (4) Convene a task team 

meeting and report on 

Dispute prevention in 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

A task team was convened, 

and a report presented to 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 

None    

Collective 

Agreements 

To monitor the 

implementation of 

collective agreements 

and reports presented 

to Chamber 

Reports (4) Progress Reports on the 

implementation of 

collective agreements 

presented by the 

Employer received and 

analysed in Chamber 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meetings of 26th 

February and 25th March 2021 

received and analysed reports 

on the implementation of 

Collective Agreements  

 

None    

Inclusive 

Education/LSEN 

To monitor the 

implementation of 

Inclusive Education 

Policy and reports 

presented to Chamber 

Reports (4) Reports on Inclusive 

Education received by 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 received and 

endorsed reports on the 

motoring the implementation 

of Inclusive Education Policy 

 

None    

Early Childhood 

Development (ECD) 

To monitor progress in 

the provisioning of 

Practitioners in ECD 

and progress on the 

training conducted on 

ECD in the Province, 

reports presented to 

Chamber 

Reports (4) Progress Report on the 

provisioning of training of 

practitioners’ band ECD 

received and analyzed by 

Chamber 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 received and 

analysed progress report on 

the provisioning of training of 

practitioners’ band ECD 

None    
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Collective Bargaining Services: Mpumalanga 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Employment Equity 

To monitor the 

implementation of the 

employment equity 

plan 

Reports (4) Progress reports on 

equity targets received 

and analyzed by 

Chamber 

 

Achieved 

 

Chamber meeting of 25th 

March 2021 received and 

analysed progress reports on 

equity targets 

 

None    

Curriculum and 
Examinations 
Monitoring 

implementation of the 

curriculum policy and 

the management of 

examinations, reports 

presented to Chamber  

 

Reports (4) Reports on the 

implementation of 

curriculum policies and 

exams received and 

analysed in Chamber  

Not Achieved 
 
 

Report (1)  Report was deferred to the 

next meeting of the 

Chamber.  

 

Maths, Science and  
Technology 
Academy 
To monitor the 
implementation of 
MSTA programs and 
reports presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (4) Reports on the 

implementation of MSTA 

programs received and 

analysed by Chamber 

Not Achieved 
 
Report on the implementation 
of MSTA programs was not 
received and analysed by 
Chamber 
 

Report (1) Report on the 

implementation of MSTA 

programs was not received 

and analysed by Chamber.  

 

Policy and 
Procedure on 
Incapacity and Ill 
Health  
Retirement (PILIR) 
To monitor the 

implementation of the 

Policy on PILIR and 

present reports to 

Chamber 

Reports (4) Progress reports on the 

finalization of PILIR 

cases/applications 

received and analysed by 

Chamber 

Achieved 
 
Chamber meeting of 25th 
March 2021 received and 
analysed progress reports on 
the finalisation of PILIR 
cases/applications 

None    
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Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The Chamber managed to facilitate one Chamber meeting and one Special Chamber meeting, including the Standing Committee meeting and 
meetings of task teams and formation of a task team on Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018 (to expedite forward the implementation of the 
Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018). The Parties received and analysed reports on the post provisioning norms consultative processes for 2020.  
 
The Employer reported that there were no schools which appealed the process for Teacher Incentives and that all qualifying 312 beneficiaries 
have already been incentivised. 
 
The decisions of the Standing Committee and recommendations of the task teams were discussed and ratified and the Parties further agreed 
that they be implemented. The Employer reported that 3 699 contract educators were re-employed and paid their outstanding salaries and a 
made commitment to ensure that all outstanding temporary teachers would have been re-appointed by end of March 2021. 
 
The Parties were briefed of the positive and progressive progress made in the extension of all contracts for Grade R Practitioners to March 2022 
and that 993 have been translated to full-time. 
 
The Parties were able to discuss the finalisation of PILIR cases or applications and agreed that the service provider (SOMA) be invited to clarify 
the delays in processing of the cases or applications.  
 
In addition, Chamber was briefed to share information on the health status of the Department’s employees, and the implementation and 
introduction of all programs to confront challenges as experienced by the Employee Health and Wellness Unit in managing the testing campaign. 
The employment equity targets recorded non-improvement for female employees in senior positions and people living with disabilities. 
 
In monitoring the implementation of Integrated Quality Management System, moderated self-evaluation scores will be used for summative 
evaluation and pay progression is expected to be paid by end of July 2021. The Teacher Education and Development Directorate reported that 
the Provincial Training Team on the Quality Management System, managed to train 69 Circuit Managers and 1 678 principals of schools with 1 
565 signing their work plans. 
 
The Chamber was not able to record any achievement on the Maths Science and Technology Academy as the Employer did not provide a report. 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

 

The Chamber will receive two reports for the Maths Science and Technology target in the first quarter of the 2021/22 financial year, to cover the 
deviation. 
 
The Report on Curriculum and Examinations has been deferred to the next meeting of the Chamber. 
 

Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective Bargaining 
Services: 
Mpumalanga 

82 46 36 

Total 82 46 36 
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North West  
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of  Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process and 
distribution of post 
provisioning for the 
following financial year 
received and analysed 
by Chamber 
 
 

Reports (3) 
 
    
 

Consolidated report on 
distribution of post 
provisioning for 2021 
presented by the 
Employer in Chamber 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 12th 
March 2021 received a 
consolidated report on post 
provisioning 

None   

Employee Health and 
Wellness 
The report on the 
nature and number of 
Employee Health and 
Wellness activities 
introduced and 
implemented 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (2) n/a n/a n/a  *This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the first 
and third quarters of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
 

Teacher 
Development 
Monitoring progress 
reports on provisioning 
of teacher 
development 
programs are 
presented in 

Chamber. 

Reports (4) Teacher Development 
programmes report 
presented and received 
by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 received a report 
in relation to programmes on 
Teacher Development 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Dispute Prevention  
Monitoring reports on 
the categories and 
status of disputes and 
grievances lodged 
presented in Chamber 

Reports (4) Statistical report (national 
and provincial) discussed 
at quarterly meetings of 
Task Team and 
presented to Chamber 

Achieved       
     
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 accepted reports 
on disputes; misconducts and 
grievances discussed at the 
Task Team meeting of 12th 
February 2021 
 

None   

Terminations 
(contract expiry; 
resignations; 
retirements; 
deceased and 
dismissals) 
Consolidated reports 
of the category of 
terminations is 
available and 
presented to Chamber 
 

Reports (3) Consolidated reports on 
the category of 
terminations presented 
and received by 
Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 accepted reports 
on category of terminations 

None   

QLTC 
The report on 
progress made in 
relation to QLTC 
activities presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (3) Progress report on QLTC 
activities received and 
analysed by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 received reports 
on QLTC activities 

None   

Safety in Schools 
Implementation of 
programmes on safety 
in schools are 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (3) A report on programmes 
of Safety in Schools 
received by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 received reports 
on Safety in Schools 

None   

Advertisement and 
Filling of Posts 
Sharing information on 
the advertisement and 
filling of posts at the 
Chamber 

Reports (2) n/a n/a n/a  *This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the first 
and third quarters of the 
2020/21 financial year. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: North West 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th         
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

 
 
 

IQMS/PMDS 
Consolidated report on 
assessed and paid 
employees is available 
and presented in 
Chamber 
 

Reports (2) Statistical report on 
IQMS and PMDS 
payments presented and 
received by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 received reports 
and payments related to IQMS 
and PMDS 

None   

Temporary 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
implementation of 
Collective Agreement 
on Temporary 
Educators are 
available and 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (4) Statistical report of 
temporary educators 
received by Chamber 

Achieved 
 
The Chamber meeting of 5th 
March 2021 received report on 
temporary teachers 

None   

Incentives for 
Educators 
Monitoring reports on 
the implementation of 
incentives for 
educators are 
available and 
presented in Chamber 
 

Reports (2) 
 

n/a n/a n/a  *This is a bi-annual target 
that only relates to the 
second and third quarters 
of the 2020/21 financial 
year. 
 

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
During the period under review, the following programmes were prioritised for the Chamber: 
 
Two Task Teams meetings were convened on 12th February 2021 and they intended to respond to the following mandates: 



 

62 
 

 processing reports in respect to appointments and conversion of temporary educators in line with the prescriptions of Collective 
Agreement No. 4 of 2018, as well as reflecting on strategies seeking to respond to the plight of other categories of temporary teachers 
excluded by the said agreement 

 Receiving and analysing reports on grievances, disputes and misconduct cases with the view of identifying measures that could 
minimise prevalence of these challenges 

 
The special STANCO meeting which, inter-alia, was aimed at the advancement of objectives of the Chamber in respect to capacity-building 
programmes, including mitigation on emerging risks potentially posing threats on postponements and/or adjournments of meetings resulting 
into non-achievements. The said meeting convened on 19th February 2021 and managed to formulate recommendations for the attention and 
endorsement of the formal Chamber meeting held on 5th March 2021. The following bears reference: 

 Motion on workshop related to “Minimum Requirements for Teachers and Education Qualifications”; “Objectives and Operations of 
Policy on Incapacity-Leave” together with “MTEF Concepts” scheduled for 19th March 2021 
 

 Initiative with regard to the year-planner of 2021/22 proactively moving for the formal STANCO meetings to precede formal Chamber 
meetings, and submission was motivated as follows: 
 

o the purpose of introducing this motion is to consider an opportunity seeking to grant formal STANCO meetings opportunity to 
precede formal Chamber meetings with the view of mandating formal STANCO meetings on analysing both proposed agendas 
of the next formal Chamber meetings, as well as verifying reports meant for such Chamber meetings 

 
o the implementation of the newly-introduced year-planner would mitigate challenges potentially posing risks of frustrating 

chamber programmes in that frequently registered concerns such as information deficiencies; questionable templates; perceived 
duplicated reports; delaying and/or non-submission of reports; incomplete reports; etc., would be minimised. 

 
The report is further making reference to the formal Chamber meeting hosted on 5th March 2021, which amongst others received and elaborated 
on reports reflected on the table above. The said formal Chamber meeting expressed views on some of the reports and the following serve as 
testimony: 

 In collaborating with Labour, the Employer sensitised Labour that capacity-training is the prerequisite to enhance programmes of 
Teacher Development, thus a request on training educators during school holidays was processed 

 The meeting acknowledged that inasmuch as North West has successfully conducted training on the implementation of the collective 

agreement advocating on Quality Management System (QMS) during the lifespan of 2020, there are challenges that are to be identified 

and subjected to scrutiny 
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 Given the mandates of the Task Team on Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018, which exclude reports on other categories of temporary 
teachers, the meeting endorsed the motion that the Task Team is to process reports of all categories of temporary teachers for the 
purpose of having one report related to Temporary Educators to be received by Chamber  

 
Some of the decisions emanating from the formal Chamber meeting of 5th March 2021 were deferred to the Special Chamber meeting held on 
12th March 2021 and adjudicated as follows: 

 The meeting noted that Labour is unable to implement decisions related to prioritised programmes of Teacher Development, together 
with template guiding reports of Safety in Schools, the special chamber meeting agreed that: 

o the funded annual programme on Teacher development will be shared with Labour  
o the Employer to develop a template for Safety in Schools reports and circulate it 

 

 By virtue of the impossibility of Collective Agreement No. 1 of 2020 and Circular 1 of 2021 of Department of Basic Education to perform 
during alert level one, and noting the relationship between the said two policies with reports related to “Employees with Comorbidities”, 
the meeting concurred that: 

o item “Employees with Comorbidities” be removed from the agenda of the Chamber 
o reports on “Employee Health and Wellness” be presented on a quarterly basis, since they would  incorporate information related 

to “Employees with Comorbidities” 
 

 In responding to Clause 25 of Annexure A of the ELRC constitution, guiding on appointment of office bearers, the meeting endorsed 
Messrs A Diale and Z Mokhuma respectively as chairperson and deputy-chairperson as presented by the Labour party. 

 
As part of the campaign advocating on promoting training and building capacity, 19th March 2021 was identified for subjecting officials 
delegated by Parties to Chamber to training aimed at minimising misunderstandings and mitigating probable disputes amongst parties. The 
Employer party positively contributed to the said training because they availed facilitators who presented the programmes as per the following 
order. 
 

 The first presentation was confined to Minimum Requirements for Teachers and Education Qualifications, and was characterised by the 

following: 

o the responsible institution for evaluation of qualifications  

o different categories of qualifications demonstrated by means of various scenarios 

o explanation on difference between underqualified and unqualified educators 
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o similarities between qualified and unqualified professional educators in terms of salaries, and the difference related to 

conversion 

o the impact and/or role of Post Graduate Certificate in Education (PGCE) 

o implication and interpretation related to levels in terms of Relative Education Qualification Value (REQV) 

o necessity of upgrading qualifications given the implication on monetary value between the REQVs 

 

 The subsequent programme related to Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave for Ill-health Retirement, which was consistently defined 
with item H.5.3 of Personnel Administrative Measure (PAM) and the following features were processed: 

o it is common cause that most applications would be declined due to insufficient information whereas annexures are vividly 
stipulating requirements in terms of information expected 

o in some cases applicants have the tendency to refer applications direct to districts without communicating to principals 
o the workshop conceded that it is the responsibility of the applicant to account for the leave applied for  
o the importance on submitting medical certificates is downplayed and there is desperate need for employees and/or members be 

advised in this regard 
o the concern related to inconsistency in terms of utilisation of doctors was registered as a challenge characterised by legal 

implications 
o the practice of assigning a next-of-kin to provide assistance in the event that the applicant is unable to perform responsibilities on 

reporting his/her absence was recommended 
 

 The last presentation, which focused on Post Provisioning Norms (PPN), was dichotomised as policy related perspective and operational 
phenomenon and the workshop appreciated that: 

o the challenges appealing for adjudication given their potential on posing risk to the policy on PPN are: budget; incorrect or late 
submission of data; very small schools and model platform 

o there are different formulae applied to determine the Post Provisioning Model (PPM) at learning institutions 
o the Art, Dance, Drawing and Music (ADDM) subjects would advantage PPM at schools  
o most schools are not adhering to the workload principle which relates to conditions of service in that some principals are not 

teaching and/or some deputy-principals/departmental heads would be allocated less than the prescribed percentage in respect to 
the workload principle 

 the operation of PPM impacts on the budget in that when there is an increase in the number of learners, there is a decrease 
in budget and Chamber needs to engage on this challenge  

 the other challenge deserving adjudication would relate to schools practicing English as a medium of instruction located 
around predominantly Tswana oriented areas 
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: North 
West 

98 52 46 

Total 98 52 46 
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Northern Cape 
 
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th  
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report on the 
consultation process for post 
provisioning is made 
available and tabled at 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (3) 
 

A Report tabled by the 
Employer to Chamber 
on the allocation of 
Additional Posts to 
schools 

 

Achieved 

The report on the allocation of 

additional posts was tabled on 

23rd  March 2021 and 

presented to Chamber on 29th 

March 2021 

 
 

None   

Educators Incentives  
Monitoring reports on the 
implementation of incentives 
for educators are available 
and presented at Chamber 
meeting 

Reports (3) 
 

The employer to report 
on the payments made 
to the qualifying schools 
at Chamber. 
 

 Achieved 

The report on the payments 

made to the qualifying schools 

was tabled on 23rd March 2021 

and presented to Chamber on 

29th March 2021 

None   

Temporary Educators and 
Conversion 
Consolidated report on the 
appointment and 
conversions of temporary 
educators presented to 
Chamber 

Reports (3) 
 

A Statistical report on 

the appointments and 

conversions of 

temporary educators 

presented to Chamber 

by the Employer 

 Achieved 

The Statistical report on the 

appointments and conversions 

of temporary educators was 

tabled on 23rd March 2021and 

presented to Chamber on 29th 

March 2021 

 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th  
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

Integrated Quality 
Management System IQMS 
and Performance 
Management Development 
System (PMDS) 
Consolidated report on 
assessed and paid 
employees is made 
available and presented to 
Chamber 
 

Reports (2) 
 

A statistical report on 

IQMS and PMDS 

payments presented by 

the Employer to 

Chamber 

Achieved 

The statistical report on the 

payments of IQMS and PMDS 

was presented in the Chamber 

meeting held on 24th March 

2021 

 

None   

Advertisement and Filling 
of Promotional Posts 
Consolidated reports on the 
advertisement and filling of 
SMT posts tabled at 
Chamber meeting 

Reports (2) 
 

 Statistical report on 
filling of posts 
presented by the 
employer and 
analysed in Chamber. 

 Presentation of the 
Preface for the 
Gazette presented in 
chamber 

 

 Achieved 

The report on the Statistics on 

filling of posts and the preface 

of the gazette was tabled on 

23rd March 2021 and 

presented to Chamber on 29th 

March 2021 

None   

Curriculum & Exams 
Consolidated reports on the 
implementation of the 
curriculum programmes and 
examination results to 
Chamber. 
 

Reports (4) The Employer is to 

report on the 

performance and 

analysis of results of the 

4th quarter of the 

academic year to 

Chamber 

 Achieved 

The report on the performance 

and analysis of results of the 

4th quarter of the academic 

year was tabled on 24th March 

2021and presented to 

Chamber on 29th March 2021 

 

None   

Teacher Development 
Consolidated reports on 
implementation of Teacher 
Development programmes 
presented to Chamber. 

Reports (4) Management Plan for 
the implementation of 
the programme on 
Teacher Development to 

Achieved 

The Management Plan for the 

implementation of the Teacher 

Development programme was 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Northern Cape 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
for 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 4th  
Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comments on deviations Status 

 be tabled at Chamber 
meeting. 
 
Report on the identified 
needs of Quality 
Management System 
(QMS) 

tabled on 25th March 2021 and 

presented to Chamber on 29th 

March 2021 

 

 

Dispute Prevention 
Reports on the Grievances, 
Misconduct and Disputes 
lodged tabled to Chamber 
 

Reports (3) 
 

The Employer to present 
a Provincial statistical 
report on grievances, 
disputes and misconduct 
cases at Chamber 
meeting 
 

 Achieved 

The provincial statistical report 

on grievances, disputes and 

misconduct cases was tabled 

on 25th March 2021 and 

presented to Chamber on 29th 

March 2021 

None   

Schools’ Safety  
Implementation of 
programmes on safety in 
schools are presented in 
Chamber 

Reports (3) 
 

The Employer is to 
report to Chamber on: 

 The Management-
Plan of safety at 
schools. 

 Report by the 
employer on the 
prevention 
programmes of Safety 
at Schools  

 Achieved 

The Management Plan and 
the report on the prevention 
programmes of Safety at 
Schools  was tabled on 25th 
March 2021 and presented to 
Chamber on 29th March 2021 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 

This report briefly reflects on activities held during the period under review. All the APP targets for the quarter under review were achieved, 
including the outstanding (Integrated Quality Management System IQMS and Performance Management Development System (PMDS) report of 
the third quarter of 2020/21.   
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A task team on the criteria for Educators Incentives was established and is still ongoing for the new financial year of 2021/2022. 
 
Another task team on Collective Agreement No. 4 of 2018 was established in order to have a common understanding on the interpretation of 
the Collective Agreement. 
 
QUARTERLY TARGETS 
 
Post Provisioning  
 
The Employer reported the 2021 number of applications received for additional posts and the number of additional posts which were 
distributed: 

 
District No. of 

Schools 

Additional posts 

Requested 

%of Additional 

Posts 

 No. of 

Learners 

Pro Rata% 

of Total 

No. of Additional 

Posts Allocated 

Frances Baard 34 66 28,9  89328 32% 32 

JT Gaetsewe 14 29 12,34  73271 26% 26 

Namaqua 13 20 8,51  20286 7% 7 

Pixley ka Seme 23 40 17,02  43003 15% 15 

ZF Mgcawu 47 80 34,04  53914 19% 19 

Total 131 235 100  279802 100% 100 

 

Educators’ Incentives 
 
The Employer reported the following number of schools and number of educators per district as processed for Educators’ Incentives from 1st  
April 2020 to 15th March 2021. 
 

District No. of Schools No. of Educators Amount 

Frances Baard 25  500  R     6 416 029,28  

JT Gaetsewe 120 1169 R   15 852 124,31  

Namaqua 46 437 R     4 702 589,55  

Pixley ka Seme 42 685 R     5 685 961,50  



 

70 
 

District No. of Schools No. of Educators Amount 

ZF Mgcawu 31 293 R     3 849 781,39  

Total 264 2761 R   36 506 486,03  

 
 

Temporary Educators & Conversions 
 
The Employer presented the following statistical report on the appointment and conversion of temporary educators. 
 

District PL 1  Number of Conversions Processed for Q3 2020 

Processed For Q3 2020 

 Outstanding Conversion Attended to for Q4 

2020 TEMPORARY 

EDUCATORS 

SUBSTITUTE 

EDUCATORS 

 Total 

Submitted 

Qualified Do Not Qualify Total 

Submitted 

Qualified Do Not Qualify 

Frances Baard 431 23  36 32 4 16 16 0 

JT Gaetsewe 146 20  71 66 5 59 44 15 

Namaqua 268 15  62 44 11 31 22 09 

Pixley ka Seme 763 5  0 0 0 0 0 0 

ZF Mgcawu 401 46  49 39 9 0 0 0 

Total 2009 109  218 181 29  201 82 24 

 

Integrated Quality Management System IQMS and Performance Management Development System (PMDS) 
 
The Employer presented the following statistical assessment on IQMS and PMDS, reported on the target for the third quarter and the statistical 
report on the payments made:  

2020 
IQMS assessment per level of 

performance 

  PMDS  

 

Assessment of 

Office-Based 

Educators 

Number awarded Salary 

Progression 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  ES 25  

PL 1 25 1654 4109 79  SES 237 

412 

 

PL 2 20 192 555 133  DCES 151  

PL 3 3 53 162 42  CES 34  

PL 4 3 70 243 58  Total Number of Educators – 447  

Total Number of Educators – 9 165  Total Number Evaluated      - 412   

Total Number Evaluated      - 7 952   Total Number not Evaluated      - 29  
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2020 
IQMS assessment per level of 

performance 

  PMDS  

 

Assessment of 

Office-Based 

Educators 

Number awarded Salary 

Progression 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  ES 25  

PL 1 25 1654 4109 79  SES 237 

412 

 

PL 2 20 192 555 133  DCES 151  

PL 3 3 53 162 42  CES 34  

PL 4 3 70 243 58  Total Number of Educators – 447  

Total Number of Educators – 9 165  Total Number Evaluated      - 412   

Total Number Evaluated      - 1 213   Total Number Qualified by default      - 16 

 

 

     Total Number Disqualified   - 15  

 

The Employer presented the number of educators who received Salary Pay Progression as follows: 
 

District Awarded Salary 

Progression 

Default 

Progression 

Frances Baard 2773 19 

JT Gaetsewe 1675 79 

Namaqua 641 10 

Pixley ka Seme 1080 13 

ZF Mgcawu 1337 21 

Total 131 235 

 
Advertisement and Filling of Posts 
 
The Employer presented the following Statistical report on the advertised posts, number filled, number lost and number to be re-advertised:  
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ADVERTISED POSTS   NUMBER OF POSTS FILLED  POSTS LOST & RE-ADVERTISEMENT 

DISTRICT  
Principal  Deputy 

Principal 
Departmental 
Head  Total 

Principal 
 

Deputy 
Principal 

Departmental 
Head 

 
Total 

Post Lost Re-Advertise Outstanding Total 

Frances Baard 9 14 51 74 6 13 29 48 1 47 1 49 

JT Gaetsewe 19 16 73 108 19 12 39 70 6 39 0 45 

Namaqua 13 3 13 29 7 3 2 12 1 15 1 17 

Pixley ka Seme 13 7 33 53 8 1 20 29 2 18 1 21 

ZF Mgcawu 6 9 28 43 5 6 17 28 4 20 1 25 

 Total 
  

60 49 198 307 39 22 77 150 14 139 4 157 

 

Gazette 2021 SMT posts 

 The Employer was planning to issue the gazette in April 2021 as well as to issue the gazette of vacant SMT posts in April 2021. 

 The Preface of the Gazette was shared with Parties, some inputs which were agreed upon were included, and for the 

outstanding proposals on the preface another meeting was proposed to be held on 15th April 2021. 

CURRICULUM AND EXAMINATION 
 

GRADE 12 - 2020  2020      Grade 11  2020    Grade 10 

2020 – Region 
Name 

Entered Wrote Pass Bach. Dip. H- Cert NCS Endo. Pass 
% 

Wrote  Pass Pass % Wrote  Pass Pass % 

Frances Baard 4 115 4 010 2 605 1 213 888 499 0 5 65,0% 4 868 4 486 92,2% 7 465 5 946 79,7% 

JT Gaetsewe 3 316 3 166 1 900 705 697 498 0 0 60,0% 4 290 3 569 83,2% 6 344 4 382 69,1% 

Namakwa 821 810 637 273 256 108 0 0 78,6% 947 888 93,8% 1 258 1 074 85,4% 

Pixley Ka Seme 1 511 1 461 983 443 346 194 0 0 67,3% 1 864 1 677 90,0% 2 780 2 012 72,4% 

ZF Mgcawu 2 258 2 161 1 540 662 610 268 0 0 71,3% 2 554 2 290 89,7% 3 531 2 735 77,5% 

PROVINCE 12 021 11 608 7 665 3 296 2 797 1 567 0 5 66,0% 14 523 12 
910 

88,9% 21 378 16 149 75,5% 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

73 
 

Provincial Pass % 

       Year Gr 1 Gr 2 Gr 3  Gr4  Gr 5 Gr 6  Gr 7  Gr 8 Gr 9 

2020 
Enrolled Pass 

% 
Enrolled Pass 

% 
Enrolled Pass % Enrolled Pass 

% 
Enrolled Pass % Enrolled Pass % Enrolled Pass % Enrolled Pass % Enrolled Pass % 

25 859 86.0% 24 949 90.3% 24 127 92.1% 26 557 84.4% 23 997 91.0% 23 783 94.3% 22 971 90.8% 21 802 86.7% 17 018 92.1% 

 

 
TEACHER DEVELOPMENT 

 The Employer reported on the Management Plan and provided an update on implemented programs 

 The Employer used both face-to-face and virtual platforms for meetings and trainings, but indicated that virtual meetings work better for 
meetings than training and that they were well attended when conducted face-to-face. 

 The Management Plan included programmes like Training for office-based officials on Information Management; data driven decision 
making; leading and managing change; Digital Learning Workshops; SACE Programs; Workshops and sessions for English teachers in 
four districts; the launch of the African Language association and the Teacher Appreciation and Support Program. 

 No report was presented on the identified needs of QMS because the implementation of QMS was effective for the year 2021, principals 
were only trained in January 2021, the last training that took place to date was held on 25th March 2021. 

 
DISPUTE PREVENTION 

 The Employer presented the provincial statistical report on grievances, disputes and misconducts. 

 Two report presented was based on the third quarter for the financial year 2020-2021 (01 October 2020 – 31 December 2020)  

 The Statistics presented were as follows: 
Q3 2020/21 (01 October 2020 – 31 December 2020) 

 TOTAL RECEIVED FINALISED PENDING 

Grievances 07 06 01 

Misconduct 21 12 09 

Precautionary Suspension 
05 05 00 

Total amount/cost = R2414 342.41 

Conciliation 10 05 05 

Arbitration 17 06 11 

Labour Court 03 00 03  

Appeals 03 01 02 
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SCHOOLS SAFETY  
   

 The Employer reported on the Management Plan of Schools’ Safety for the Period 1st March 2021 to 31st December 2021  

 The programmes of Safety at school were not rolled out since the reopening of schools due to: 
o Late reopening of schools 
o Allowing schools time to settle down and put systems in place in line with COVID-19 SOP 

 

 The following progress has been done in preventing vandalism in identified vulnerable schools: 
o Quotations have been sourced for installation of alarms in 40 x schools 
o The processing of transferring funds is currently underway 
o A number of schools were participating in School Safety capacity building programmes 

 

Standing Agenda Item(s) and Endorsements  
 
QMS -Quality Management System 
 
The Employer reported on the training dates for principals, the work plans completed by principals, the summary of QMS management plan 
moving forward and the recommendations to the PELRC in terms of the progress made. 

 
QLTC – Quality Learning and Teaching Campaign 
 
The Employer reported on the progress made to date which included: 

 Provincial QLTC Meeting Schedule Circulated to all 

 Communication to all District Directors and District Coordinators done that QLTC is a standard Agenda Item in the ELRC 

 Back to School Campaign done in nine Schools throughout the Province  

 Part of National Roadshow of DBE on Coding and Robotics, where it was advocated for functional School QLTC Structures to Principals 

 Francis Baard District, ZF Mgcawu have identified and seconded QLTC Focal persons Coordinators 

 All Districts have QLTC Coordinators and QLTC Meeting Schedule Dates were distributed 

 The QLTC COVID-19 Schools Regulation Compliance Reporting Tool was presented on the Districts and Schools that were monitored 
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Sponsored agenda items discussed in the Chamber meeting include: 
 
Presidential Stimulus Package Employment Initiative 

 March 2021 SGB Elections 

 Screeners’ Contracts 

 Emailing of the salary advices of those educators and non-educator staff who are far away from the Head Office 

 Northern Cape DoE Gazette 2020 on Promotional Posts (Discussion) 
 

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 

 

Not applicable.  

 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 

 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Northern 
Cape 

122 56 65 

Total 122 56 65 
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Western Cape 
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Consultation, Implementation and Monitoring of Collective Agreements and Policies 

Post Provisioning 
A consolidated report 
on the consultation 
process for post 
provisioning is 
available. 
 

Reports (4) 
 

Implementation report is 
tabled by the WCED at the 
Chamber meeting by the 
31st  March 2021 

Achieved 
 
An implementation report on 
post provisioning was tabled 
at the Transformation and 
Restructuring Task Team 
(TRTT) meeting by the 
Employer on: 

 23rd February 2021 

 
A report was presented to 
Chamber by the Provincial 
Manager (PM) to Chamber 
on: 

 24th March 2021 

 

None   

Dispute Prevention 
Monitoring report on 
grievances, 
misconduct, disputes, 
and training conducted 
is available 

Reports (4) 
 
 
 

Trends analysis reports on 
grievances, misconducts & 
disputes are presented to 
the Dispute Prevention 
Task Team by the WCED 
for analysing and a report 
is presented to Chamber 
by the 31 March 2021 

Achieved 
 
WCED presented a trend 
analysis report on 
grievances, misconduct & 
disputes to the DPTT 
meeting on: 

 17th March 2021 
 

A report was presented to 
Chamber by the PM on: 

 24th March 2021 
 
 
 

None   
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Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

 Reports (2) A report on training 
relating to Dispute 
Resolution matters for 
educators/supervisors/ma
nagers is presented jointly 
to Chamber by the 31st 

March 2021. 

Achieved 
 
A report on training relating 
to Dispute Resolution 
matters for educators / 
supervisors / managers was 
jointly presented to Chamber 
on: 

 24th March 2021 
 

None   

Safety at Educational 
Institutions 
Monitoring report on 
the implementation of 
the Nine-point Safe 
Schools planning 
process is available  

Reports (3) A report on the 
implementation of the 
Nine-point Safe Schools 
planning process is 
submitted to the Safety at 
Schools Task Team by the 
Employer and presented 
to Chamber by the 31st 
March 2021 

Not Achieved Reports (1) Due to COVID-19, the Nine-
Point Safe Schools planning 
process could not be 
implemented since 
schooling was on a 
rotational basis.  
 
A report could therefore not 
be submitted to the Safety 
at Schools Task Team 
meeting held on 10th March 
and Chamber on 24th March 
2021.  
 
Since Safety at schools are 
of paramount importance 
Chamber agreed to remain 
with the planned targets of 
2020 and included the 
targets in the Annual Plan 
2021/2022. 
 
The unachieved targets 
have been included in the 
adopted Annual 
Performance Plan 
2021/2022 for 
implementation. 
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Collective Bargaining Services: Western Cape 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 
Achievement for 4th 
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Quality Management 
System (QMS)   
A consolidated report 
on the implementation 
of the capacity 
development 
interventions is 
available 

Reports (4) The Employer presents a 
report on the 
implementation of QMS to 
Chamber by 31st March 
2021. 

Achieved 
 
The Employer presented a 
report on capacity 
development interventions 
on QMS to the IQMS task 
team meeting on: 

 17th February and 
Chamber on 

 24th March 2021  
 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The period evaluated posed its challenges specifically around appropriate dates for meetings. Although the timeframes were extremely 
challenging, Chamber managed to achieve three of the identified objectives for this quarter. The non-achievement of submitting a report on the 
implementation of the Nine-Point Safe Schools planning process will be dealt with in the new financial year. Chamber tried to observe and 
implement the strategic objectives of the ELRC Collective Bargaining Services, which are to maintain and promote labour peace and promoting 
collective bargaining on matters of mutual interest, implementing, and monitoring collective agreements through workshops and consultations. 
Apart from the identified objectives, Chamber was able to monitor and share information on several projects from the Employer based on reports 
submitted. 
 
During the fourth quarter labour peace prevailed through mutual respect between the Employer and the Employee Parties. This was 
demonstrated in the dual meetings held over the period under review. The STANCO meeting held on 4th February 2021, identified dates for 
Task Team and Chamber meetings. Common understandings reached in the Chamber, were successfully implemented by the Employer and 
monitoring of such policies and collective agreements were scrutinised in the various meetings. 
 
The Employer and Employee Parties demonstrated firm commitment in ensuring that almost all programme performance targets for the quarter 
were met. The planned programme performance indicators for the fourth quarter related to Post Provisioning, Dispute Prevention, Safety at 
Educational Institutions and Quality Management System (QMS). The planned quarterly targets, achieved and not achieved, this quarter are as 
follow: 
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Post Provisioning:  
The Employer tabled a verbal report on the implementation of Post Provisioning at the Transformation and Restructuring Task Team meeting on 
23rd February 2021 as per the identified target. Parties agreed that the report should be in writing and submitted to Chamber on 24th March 2021. 
The Employer submitted a written report at Chamber and the following salient matters were emphasized: The 2021 Basket of Posts consultation 
meetings were held on 18th August 2020 between the MEC for Education in the Western Cape and School Governing Body Associations (SGBAs). 
The meeting between the Head of Department, Organised Trade Unions and SGBAs took place on 31st August 2020. The consulted focused 
areas were to strengthen the foundation phase; to ensure stability in post allocations to schools; reduction in class sizes; to address inequalities; 
reduction in curriculum extensions (especially Grade 10-12 subjects) and Specialised Education. The 2021 teacher: learner ratios were based 
on 31st March 2020 (Annual Survey) learner enrolment totals. The 2020 educator basket of posts of 33 865 was retained for the 2021 academic 
year. The educator posts allocated to Ordinary Public and Public Special schools in 2020, plus additional posts, were retained for the 2021 
academic year and so communicated in circular 0025 of 2020. 
 
The issuance of the 2021 educator establishments were issued on 23rd September 2020 to Ordinary Public and Public Special Schools. The 693 
additional posts allocated in 2020 were retained for the 2021 academic year at the same schools. Of the 199 additional posts reserved in the 
2021 educator basket of posts, 29 additional posts were allocated to accommodate unplaced learners and where mobiles were delivered at 
schools. This increase the total of additional posts from 693 to 723. Forty-eight (48) Posts were allocated from the additional allocation for new 
schools and 98 posts were allocated for Grade/Curriculum extensions in 2021. The total number of additional posts not allocated are 25. Seven 
posts were gained from pre-primary educators that exited in the WCED and the seven posts were added to the 25 additional posts which equates 
to 31 posts yet to be allocated. 
 
The distribution of the 723 additional posts to Ordinary Public schools are reflected in the tables below: 

DISTRICT 
GROWTH POSTS 

ALLOCATED 
CURRICULUM POSTS 

ALLOCATED TOTAL % DISTRIBUTION 

CAPE WINELANDS 73 46 119 16% 

EDEN AND CENTRAL KAROO 45 4 49 7% 

METRO CENTRAL 51 4 55 8% 

METRO EAST 122 23 145 20% 

METRO NORTH 169 28 197 27% 
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DISTRICT 
GROWTH POSTS 

ALLOCATED 
CURRICULUM POSTS 

ALLOCATED TOTAL % DISTRIBUTION 

METRO SOUTH 62 8 70 10% 

OVERBERG 45 7 52 7% 

WEST COAST 35 1 36 5% 

Grand Total 602 121 723 100% 

 

QUINTILE 
GROWTH POSTS 

ALLOCATED 
CURRICULUM POSTS 

ALLOCATED TOTAL % DISTRIBUTION 

NQ1 80 10 90 12% 

NQ2 56 17 73 10% 

NQ3 145 20 165 23% 

NQ4 219 49 268 37% 

NQ5 102 25 127 18% 

Grand Total 602 121 723 100% 

 

FEE/NO FEEQUINTILE 
GROWTH POSTS 

ALLOCATED 
CURRICULUM POSTS 

ALLOCATED TOTAL % DISTRIBUTION 

 Fee School 200 51 251 35% 

 No Fee School 402 70 472 65% 

Grand Total 602 121 723 100% 

 

Employee Parties wanted to know if the posts distribution is pro-poor. WCED responded that 65% of Growth Posts Allocations went to No Fee 
School. Looking at 35/65% pro-poor is thus the focus area. CTU ATU thanked WCED for the response although they are not satisfied with the 
response. Employee Parties wanted to know how many posts are still needed to fulfil the task. They wanted to know why learners were not 
accommodated yet. They further indicated that the only place where the consulted Post Basket can be addressed is at the Chamber meetings 
since there is no other forum for Parties to discuss the consulted Post Basket. Employee Parties could not understand why there is no correlation 
between the Post Basket and unplaced learners. They further indicated that the consulted Post Basket and the tables above do not correlate 
regarding the utilisation of the posts. The tables only address Growth Posts Allocated and not the entire basket. They indicated that in future the 
implementation report should speak too all posts as per the consulted Post Basket. WCED responded that unplaced learners have nothing to do 
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with negotiation, but is more about space and should be discussed at another forum. The Department is currently dealing with unplaced learners 
and through national funding, hopefully, will be addressed. Accommodation should be addressed with the Head of Education (HOD) and MEC 
for Education in the Western Cape. 
 
Employee Parties indicated that they were not satisfied with the WCED’s response since the Basket of Posts was consulted under the auspices 
of the ELRC, and they need to get responses in the same forum. They indicated that the WCED should not act as if unions have not addressed 
the matter at a bilateral with the Head of Education because it was addressed, and the same concerns were addressed with unsatisfactory 
responses. The Basket of Posts was consulted under the auspices of the ELRC, and Chamber is the correct place where answers should be 
given regarding the Basket of Posts. WCED responded that they do not have a mandate to give that information at the meeting. They undertook 
to consult with their principals regarding the information and will revert to the unions. Employee Parties requested that the Employer also include 
the distribution of the entire Basket of Posts as consulted when future reports are submitted for discussion at meetings.   
 
Dispute Prevention:  
WCED presented a trend analysis report on misconduct, grievances, and disputes at the Dispute Prevention Task Team meeting on 17th March 
2021 and a report was submitted to Chamber on 24th March 2021. The following salient points were highlighted from the presentation: Misconduct, 
grievances, and disputes in the different Districts: Eden/Central Karoo District not many misconduct cases taking place. It seems that assault 
cases are on the increase. District North: several examination irregularities were reported and dealt with. In Overberg District, several Financial 
Mismanagement cases were reported. Termination of contracts are the cause of several disputes because schools are unfairly terminating 
teachers’ contracts. Across the province the main causes for concern are assault at 41 cases; improper conduct with 34 cases; financial 
mismanagement with 13 cases; absenteeism with 19 cases; sexual assault with seven cases and giving false statements at 12 cases.  
 
Grievances were highlighted in all districts as well as the number of disputes and areas of concern. WCED further indicated that the categorisation 
of dispute cases will be addressed in the annual Trend Analysis report at the next Dispute Prevention Task Team (DPTT) meeting in the new 
financial year. They confirmed that the Conversion process was the cause of several Termination of Contract disputes. Employee Parties referred 
the meeting to an undertaking made by the Employer at the Transformation and Restructuring Task Team (TRTT) meeting that WCED would 
automatically convert incumbents in Post Level 1 teachers who had been in vacant, substantive posts for three or more months; before converting 
a candidate, they will enquire from the School Governing Bodies (SGBs) whether they have any objections to the conversion. Employee Parties 
noted that WCED actioning this undertaking will drastically reduce disputes emanating from the conversion process. 
 
The Employee Parties highlighted the following matters from the presentation: A possible reason that Eden Karoo District does not have many 
reported cases of misconduct, might be that incidents are unreported. In response to the increase in Financial Mismanagement cases, Employee 
Parties noted that the unions have observed an increase in charges of misconduct emanating from audit findings. They proposed that a small 
group, a “think tank” should meet to look at possible reasons for the increase in such misconduct charges and find possible solutions. This 
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proposal was supported by all Parties. The Employer undertook that they would ensure that specialists from the relevant Directorates also attend 
the “think tank” meeting. The Chairperson commended the Parties as this decision was in accordance with the DPTT’s mandate of reducing 
misconduct and disputes cases. Employee Parties further expressed the need for the categorisation of disputes to enable the DPTT to ascertain 
where intervention was required.    
 
Employee Parties noted that Minimum Requirements for Teacher Education Qualifications (MRTEQ) was the cause for the increase in 
promotional disputes. Employee Parties concurred and added that WCED officials’ interpretation of this policy was the source of such disputes. 
Labour recommended that MRTEQ and subsequent matters as identified by the DPTT, be referred to the Chamber meeting of 24th March 2021. 
The Provincial Manager (PM) intervened and noted that such referral by the DPTT would be unconstitutional, as the DPTT does not have such 
powers. The PM added that matters identified by the DPTT should be referred to a Chamber or STANCO meeting. The meeting accepted the 
Manager’s intervention and guidance. In accordance with the Manager’s guidance, WCED noted that such referral should be informed by 
empirical data contained in WCED’s trend analysis report or any report of such nature. They also acknowledged the right of any party to request 
that any relevant concern a Party has, be placed on the agenda of a particular task team before it is referred to Chamber. 
 
Training on Dispute Resolution matters 
As per agreement by Parties at the STANCO meeting on 4 February 2021 meeting, the Employee Parties presented the following joint report on 
the different training interventions they had during the fourth quarter: 
 
SADTU and CTU ATU joint report on training initiatives: 
 

Workshops Workshop Theme Date  Number Participated 

 
Zoom platform 
 

Grievance handling 

 

 

12 March 2021  

Branch Secretaries  

Regional Secretaries 

40 Participants 

School    

Salt River High School Dispute Resolution 4 February 2021 30 participants 

Simonstown Combined School Dispute Resolution 8 February 41 participants 

Muhammadiyah PS Dispute Resolution 9 February 2021 35 participants 

Ludwe Ngamlana PS Dispute Resolution 11 February 2021 43 participants 

Stellenbosch New Entrants 26 February 45 participants 
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Safety at Educational Institutions:  
The Employer reported that due to COVID-19 the Nine-Point-Safe-Schools Planning Process could not be implemented since schooling was on 
a rotational basis. A report could therefore not be submitted to the Safety at Schools Task Team meeting held on 10th March 2021. The report 
submitted to Chamber on 24th March 2021 indicated the reason why the target could not be achieved. 
 
Quality Management System (QMS): WCED presented the report, and the following salient matters were highlighted: Two training videos were 
developed as a resource to support principals and Circuit Managers (CMs). Draft work plans were meant to be submitted by principals to CM’s 
by 10th December 2020. The WCED indicated that the focus at this point is compliance and they have provided an extension with the submission 
of the final work plans to April 2021. Mop-up training sessions for newly appointed principals were scheduled for mid to end February 2021. This 
was also communicated to schools. Training of Post Level (PL) 3 – PL 1 is scheduled for April to November 2021, and it will be done for each 
post level, respectively. QMS training for the Provincial Training Teams (PTTs) was conducted from 2nd to 6th November 2020. The actual number 
of PTT members trained is 129 (CTU ATU = 19; SADTU = 27). The National Training Team (NTT) will oversee the ongoing resource development 
and monitor the rollout of training in 2021. 
 
Other reports submitted to Chamber by the Employer: 
 
Early Childhood Development (ECD): The status of ECD Managers matter is still work in progress. A report will be submitted on any progress at 
the next meeting ECD Task Team. The ECD Think Tank meeting finally took place. The challenge of practitioner subsidies for Quintile (Q) 4 and 
Q5 schools where the schools are unable to raise the minimum salaries for the practitioners were raised by Employee Parties. WCED indicated 
that the Employer is mandated to pay full salary and they will raise the issue with Legal Services as a clause addressing National Disasters. 
Presently there is a challenge with augmenting of salary. WCED needs to guide SGBs on the matter. Capturing of learner information was delayed 
by COVID-19 and data will be presented in the next report to the task team. 
 
Safe Schools Report: WCED informed the meeting that the back-to-school programmes were implemented with effect from January 2021 and 
that pamphlets were circulated to remind parents of the importance of schooling. Employee Parties wanted to know whether school activities 
could still take place. WCED referred Parties to the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for schools which was distributed to schools in 
September 2020. The SOP gives clear guidance that there cannot be any activities in schools as the pandemic is also regarded as a Safety Risk 
like violence and crime. Employee Parties asked if schools may install electric fencing with their own funds. WCED responded that they do not 
encourage schools to install electric fencing, because of the danger to learners or someone else who might attempt to jump over the fence may 
be electrified. There will be legal implications for the school should someone be injured by such a fence.  WCED referred Parties to Circular 8 of 
2019/2020 which states that any alterations (fencing included) at schools should be submitted to the Minister of the Executive Council for approval 
and therefore schools cannot install their own electric fencing. 
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Integrated Quality Management System (IQMS): The Employer tabled their report, and the salient points were raised: The 2020 IQMS summative 
scores had 48 cases of underperformance. The 2020 IQMS Summative Scores were submitted by schools to districts and are currently being 
verified by Head Office. Due to the amended National school calendar, dates for training of new entrant teachers and submission of Baseline 
IQMS evaluations will be revised. Baseline evaluations will also follow the “Streamlined Evaluation Process” as directed by the DBE in 2020. 
IQMS for PL1, PL2 and PL3 educators will apply for the 2021 academic year. Pay progression reports is scheduled to be made available at the 
end of March 2021. Any pay progression queries must be submitted to Ms.  M. Davids and her team. There were 4000 people who did not receive 
pay progression due to there being a break in service, being contract, and many other factors. 
 
Employee Health and Wellness: WCED presented the report and indicated that due to COVID-19 no Wellness Days were conducted during the 
reporting period. No Group trauma sessions reported in this period under review. No awareness sessions were conducted in this period under 
review. 
 
Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR):  The number of Short period temporary incapacity leave applications 
(SPTIL) applications received and outcome from the First to the Fourth Quarter of 2019 in the 2019 – 2021 sick leave cycle. SPTIL received and 
outcomes for the period January 2019 to December 2020, as indicated, was due to the COVID 19 Pandemic and national lockdown which has 
been a significantly decreased in submission of temporary incapacity leave applications for April, May, June, July, and August.  The submission 
of applications increased from August 2020 to December 2020. When analysing the statistics, the gender split of employees applying for Short 
PILIR applications, they noted that 58% of applications were submitted by female employees and 32% of applications by male employees from 
the period January 2020 – December 2020, this has remained consistent with the previous quarters. Total number of Short PILIR applications 
received by age category demonstrates that the majority of the Short PILIR applications fall within the 50- to 59-year-old age band, followed 
closely by the 40- to 49-year-old age band. The Human Resource Management (HRM) notes that there are fewer applications from employees 
below the age of 30 years old as well as above the age of 60 years.  
 
The Salary Analysis of SPTIL for the period January 2020 to December 2020 has not been provided to HRM with the number of employees 
employed at each salary level. This information will be beneficial in reports going forward to compare applications received versus actual active 
population. The Top Disease Categories for Short PILIR Applications indicates the most common medical reasons (Disease Categories) for which 
employees apply for Short PILIR applications. These categories are: Factors influencing health status and contact with health services at 29%; 
Mental, Behavioural and Neurodevelopmental disorders at 22%; Diseases of the Respiratory System at 14%; Diseases of the musculoskeletal 
system and connective tissue at 7%; and Diseases of the Nervous System at 6%. Factors Influencing Health Status and Contact with Health 
Services includes applications where no diagnosis is provided, in addition to instances where employee had contact with medical services. 
Examples of common reasons for temporary incapacity leave applications in this disease category includes surgeries, chemotherapy, and 
hemodialysis. Examples of diseases of the respiratory system include asthma, influenza, bronchitis, pneumonia, and sinusitis. Musculoskeletal 
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conditions include diagnoses of back pain, myalgia, and osteoarthritis. It is also significant to note that mental and behavioural for short period 
applications appears to be on the rise.  
 
Employment Equity (EE): Employment Equity Consultative Forum (EECF) meetings are held on a quarterly basis to present the progress made 
on meeting EE targets. The Forum also serves as a platform whereby EE challenges are discussed and addressed. There was one quarterly 
EECF meeting scheduled for 21st October 2019, however, owing to the lack of attendance the meeting did not have a quorum and was cancelled. 
The Employment Equity Act Reports (EEA 2 &4) were submitted to the Head of Department for approval and were subsequently forwarded to 
the Department of Labour. Quarterly EE scores for the period 1st October to 31st December 2020 were compiled and provided to the Chief 
Directorate: Districts, Directorate: Recruitment & Selection and to the EECF members for further usage. Employee Parties raised their concern 
that the EECF did not meet regularly. They also wanted to know what the response from the Department of Labour. WCED responded that they 
have not yet received a response. 
 
National Teaching Awards (NTA): No activities have taken place for the period under review. Department of Basic Education (DBE) has convened 
a planning meeting for 13th April 2021 to discuss planning the implementation of the 21st Edition of the National Teaching Awards. 
 
Recruitment and Selection: PL1 Educator: 64 outstanding nominations regarded as erroneously advertised and institutions to be asked to do 
conversions if posts are still vacant and in contracts in post. PL 1 Educator: 11 outstanding nominations regarded as erroneously advertised and 
institutions to be asked to do conversions if posts still vacant and contracts in post 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The unachieved targets have been included in the adopted Annual Performance Plan 2021/2022 for implementation. 
 
Changes to planned target  
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Collective 
Bargaining 
Services: Western 
Cape 

82 60 22 

Total 82 60 22 
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PROGRAMME 2 DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 2 is to manage disputes proactively. This includes prevention of disputes by defusing conflicts that can disrupt 
teaching and learning and it also includes dispute resolution. Professional development and training is included in Programme 2 to ensure that 
Dispute Resolution Practitioners and Panellists operate effectively. Particular emphasis is placed on training that helps to protect the rights of 
children involved in special disputes. 
 
Sub-programmes 

 Conciliation and pre-arbitration services 

 Arbitration services 

 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners and/or Negotiators 

 Professional Training and Development of Panellists  

 Quality control of awards and rulings 
 
Strategic Objectives 

 To provide efficient dispute resolution services 

 To ensure quality over arbitration awards 

 To provide Professional Development to Panellists 
 

 
Dispute Management Services 

Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th      Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th   Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th   
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Provision of dispute resolution services 

Cases in jurisdiction 
are scheduled for 
conciliation  

Processing of all 
cases in 
jurisdiction within 
30 days 

All cases in 
jurisdiction are 
processed 
(scheduling or 
issuing of 
certificates) 

Not Achieved 
 
99.39% 
 
164 
 

0.60% One case was scheduled 
outside of the timeframe.  
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Out of 279 cases received, 189 
cases were in jurisdiction. Out 
of 189 cases, which were in 
jurisdiction, 165 cases were 
conciliated. Out of the 165 
cases that were conciliated, 
164 cases were scheduled 
within 30 days of receipt. Of the 
189 cases in jurisdiction, 16 
were BCEA; six were IBA, four 
did not have dates yet. 
 

75% of cases 
scheduled for 
arbitration within 45 
days after receipt of 
dispute referral 

75% of cases 
scheduled for 
arbitration within 
45 days after 
receipt of dispute 
referral 

To schedule 80% of 
cases scheduled for 
arbitration within 45 
days after receipt of 
dispute referral 

Achieved 
 
99% 
 
104 
 
Out of 105 cases which were 
arbitrated, 104 were arbitrated 
within 45 days and one case 
was arbitrated outside of the 
45-day period 
 

0.95% Target was exceeded due 
to Zoom scheduling of 
cases and no school 
holiday disruptions. 

 

60% of sexual 
misconduct cases 
scheduled for inquiry 
by arbitrator within 60 
days after receipt of 
referral 
 

To schedule 60% 
of sexual 
misconduct 
cases for inquiry 
by arbitrator 
within 60 days 
after receipt of 
the referral  

To schedule 60% of 
sexual misconduct 
cases for inquiry by 
arbitrator within 60 
days after receipt of 
the referral  

Achieved 
 
90% 
 
9 
 
The Council received 17 cases 
of alleged sexual misconduct.  
Of the 17 misconduct cases, 
seven cases are out of 
jurisdiction and 10 cases are in 
jurisdiction. Of the 10 cases in 
jurisdiction, nine were 
scheduled within 60 days while 
one has not yet been 
scheduled 
 

10% Target was exceeded due 
to Zoom scheduling of 
cases and no school 
holiday disruptions. 

 

100% Quality Control 
(QC) done in all 
arbitration awards 
concluded 

100% Quality 
Control (QC) 
done in all 
arbitration 

100% of all awards 
are quality controlled 
by Senior 
Commissioners 

Achieved 
 
100% 
 

None   
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Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
The Council continues to minimise frivolous requests for postponements, as well as reduce the high number of adjournments by enforcing Clause 
45 of the ELRC constitution. The increase in requests for postponements negatively affect the turn-around times for conciliation and arbitration 
processes, thus affecting the performance of the Dispute Management section. The Council also encourages Panellists to enforce clause 54 of 
the ELRC constitution in an effort to discourage inadequate preparation for hearings and requests for postponement.  
 
In hearings where a child is a victim or a witness, the Council continues to ensure that appropriate venues are booked for these special hearings, 
e.g. Magistrate Court, Children’s Court or Teddy Bear Clinic (Johannesburg) and Department of Social Development in Free State and Northern 
Cape. The Council will also ensure that Intermediaries are appointed to protect the rights of the child, as stipulated in Section 28 of the 
Constitution, “The Right of the child is of paramount importance in all matters concerning the child”. The Council continues to recruit Panellists, 
Interpreters and Intermediaries in order to improve on its efficiencies. 
 
As a way of improving efficiencies, the Council continues to enforce compliance by ensuring that Panellists submit arbitration awards to the ELRC 
within 14 days of the conclusion of arbitration proceedings, in terms of clause 18.5 of the ELRC constitution.   
 
The majority of disputes referred to the Council are on unfair labour practice related to promotions and appointments and dismissals. In a bid to 
address these disputes, the Council continues to rely on the Dispute Prevention Task Teams to resolve these areas of concern. The Council has 
committed to assist the Provincial District Prevention Task Teams by providing them with statistics on disputes which are referred every month, 
so that they can develop some intervention strategies to resolve and finalise grievances.  

awards 
concluded 

76 awards received were 
quality controlled 
 

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions for 
professional 
development of 
Panellists 

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions 
for professional 
development of 
Panellists 

Facilitate one (1) 
training sessions for 
professional 
development of 
Panellists, maintain 
an attendance 
register 

Achieved 
 
Two training sessions were 
conducted  

   

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions for 
Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners  
 

Facilitate two (2) 
training sessions 
for Dispute 
Resolution 
Practitioners 

Facilitate one (1) 
training session for 
Dispute Resolution 
Practitioners and 
maintain attendance 
register 

Achieved  
 
One training session was 
conducted 

None   
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Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
Linking performance to budget 
 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Dispute 
Management 
Services 

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Dispute Resolution 
Services 

4,936  3,561  1,375  

Total 4,936  3,561  1,375  
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ANNEXURE A: DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
 Dispute Management Services: Basic Education 
 Dispute Management Services: Higher Education and Training (TVET) 
 Training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners 
 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The ELRC received a total of 279 disputes during the period under review. Of the 190 disputes received, 102 (53.6%) were “In jurisdiction”, 
89(46.8%) were found to be “Out of Jurisdiction”. 
 
DISPUTES REFERRED BY PROVINCE 

 

 
 

EC KZN NC GP WC LP MP FS NW NAT TOTAL

49 44 43 41 28 21 20 17 16 0 279
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For the period under review, Eastern Cape was the highest referring province with 49 cases referred. This was followed by Kwazulu-Natal with 
44; Northern Cape with 43; Gauteng with 41; Western Cape with 28; Limpopo with 21; Mpumalanga with 20; Free State with 17 and North West 
with 16 disputes referred in the quarter under review. 
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Disputes Referred by Nature: January to March 2021 
 

         

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change Total 

EC 6 25 6 2 7 2 1 49 

GP 10 9 14 2 2 4 0 41 

FS 0 8 4 4 0 0 1 17 

LP 3 9 6 3 0 0 0 21 

MP 6 5 6 0 1 2 0 20 

NW 3 7 5 1 0 0 0 16 

NC 7 21 7 0 3 5 0 43 

WC 5 6 15 1 1 0 0 28 

KZN 16 14 7 4 3 0 0 44 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0   

Total 56 104 70 17 17 13 2 279 

         
Of the 279 disputes that were referred, 56 related to ULP-Promotion and Appointments; 104 related to Other Unfair Labour Practice; 70 to Alleged 
Unfair Dismissal; 17 were BCEA; 13 were Interpretation of Collective Agreements and two were referred as unilateral change of terms and 
conditions, while 17 were referred in terms of Section 188A (Inquiry by Arbitrator) of the Labour Relations Act. 
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In Jurisdiction as per nature: January to March 2021 

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change Total 

EC 2 20 5 0 7 1 1 36 

GP 5 7 7 0 2 3 0 24 

FS 0 5 3 2 0 0 1 11 

LP 1 8 6 1 0 0 0 16 

MP 2 3 2 0 0 1 0 8 

NW 2 4 3 1 0 0 0 10 

NC 4 17 4 0 3 5 0 33 

WC 2 5 13 0 1 0 0 21 

KZN 9 12 5 2 3 0 0 31 

NAT                 

Total 27 81 48 6 16 10 2 190 

         
Of the 279 disputes that were received, 190 were “In Jurisdiction”. Of the 190 that were “In Jurisdiction” 27 related to ULP – Promotion and 
Appointments; 81 related to Other Unfair Labour Practice; 48 related to Unfair dismissals; six related to Inquiry by Arbitrator (Special disputes), 
16 related to BCEA; 10 related to Interpretation and Application of Collective Agreements, while two related to unilateral change of terms and 
conditions. 
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Out of Jurisdiction as per nature: January to March 2021 

         

Provinces ULP Promo/App Other ULP 
Unfair 
dismissal 

Special 
dismissal 
related to 
abuse of 
learners BCEA 

Interpretation of 
Collective 
Agreements 

Unilateral 
Change Total 

EC 4 5 1 2 0 1 0 13 

GP 5 2 7 2 0 1 0 17 

FS 0 3 1 2 0 0 0 6 

LP 2 1 0 2 0 0 0 5 

MP 4 2 4 0 1 1 0 12 

NW 1 3 2 0 0 0 0 6 

NC 3 4 3 0 0 0 0 10 

WC 3 1 2 1 0 0 0 7 

KZN 7 2 2 2 0 0 0 13 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 29 23 22 11 1 3 0 89 

         
 
Out of the 89 disputes found to be out of jurisdiction; 29 related to ULP-Promotion and Appointments; 23 were other ULP’s; 22 related to Unfair 
Dismissals; one related to BCEA, three related to interpretation and application of collective agreements and 11 related to Inquiry by Arbitrator. 
It must be noted that the substantive amounts of disputes that were screened as out of jurisdiction were due to defective and incomplete referrals, 
including those that were referred outside time-frames and condonation was not granted. 
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Processes Conducted: January to March 2021 

    

Provinces 
Conciliation/Pre 
Arbitration Arbitration Total 

EC 28 85 113 

GP 22 86 108 

FS 9 15 24 

LP 15 32 47 

MP 7 7 14 

NW 9 29 38 

NC 29 15 44 

WC 18 67 85 

KZN 26 91 117 

NAT 0 0 0 

Total 163 427 590 

    
 
A total of 590 events were conducted for the period under review. Of these 590 were events/processes, 163 were conciliations and 427 were 
arbitration events.  Ordinarily each conciliation is concluded in a single event. Arbitrations are often conducted more than once, depending on 
the complexity of each dispute.  
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Disputes finalised by outcome: January to March 2021 

          

Province 
Withdrawn 
Conc. Settled Conc.  

Withdrawn 
Arb.  Dismissed Arb.  Settled Arb.  Award Rulings 

Special 
Awards Total 

EC 0 0 8 0 0 15 4 2 29 

GP 2 0 5 2 1 7 4 6 27 

FS 0 1 1 0 0 5 0 0 7 

LP 2 0 1 0 1 9 2 0 15 

MP 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0 3 

NW 1 0 0 1 0 1 2 0 5 

NC 6 4 3 1 0 3 2 0 19 

WC 2 1 4 1 0 7 1 2 18 

KZN 3 0 2 2 2 15 4 3 31 

NAT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 16 6 24 7 4 63 21 13 154 

          
The ELRC finalised 154 disputes during the period under review.  A total of 76 arbitration awards were rendered. Four disputes were settled at 
arbitration, while six were settled at conciliation. Withdrawn disputes amounted to a total of 40, with 16 being withdrawn at conciliation and 24 
withdrawn at arbitration. Seven cases were dismissed at arbitration and 21 rulings were handed down in the period under review. 

 
Arbitrations heard in the period: January to March 2021 
 

Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 
OTHER OLD 
CASES Total 

KZN 51 31 10 0 0 0 0 92 

FS 11 3 1 0 0 0 0 15 

EC 34 43 8 0 0 0 0 85 

GP 25 46 0 6 3 1 5 86 
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Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 
OTHER OLD 
CASES Total 

WC 30 35 2 0 0 0 0 67 

NW 18 7 0 1 0 0 0 26 

NC 9 6 0 0 0 0 0 15 

LP 15 5 4 0 0 5 0 29 

MP 2 1 4 0 0 0 0 7 

Total 195 177 29 7 3 6 5 422 

         
A total of 422 disputes were scheduled for arbitration in the period under review. Of the 422 arbitrations heard, 195 are for the 2020/21 financial 
year, 177 are for the 2019/20 financial year and 50 emanate from previous financial years. 
 
Cases carried over from previous period 

         

Province 2020/2021 2019/2020 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 OLD CASES Total 

KZN 47 16 4 0 0 0 0 67 

FS 7 6 2 0 0 0 0 15 

EC 52 17 3 0 0 0 0 72 

GP 23 21 1 0 1 0 1 47 

WC 19 10 1 0 0 0 0 30 

NW 22 8 0 1 0 0 0 31 

NC 13 2 0 0 0 0 0 15 

LP 20 8 0 0 0 0 0 28 

MP 3 1 4 0 0 0 0 8 

Total 206 89 15 1 1 0 1 313 
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A total of 313 cases from previous financial years are to be carried over to the first quarter of the 2021/22 financial year. Of these, 206 are from 
the 2020/21 financial year; 89 are for the 2019/20 financial year, while 18 cases are from previous years and remain unresolved.   
 
Postponements and adjournments: January to March 2021 

    

Province Postponements Adjournments Total 

KZN 7 0 7 

FS 0 2 2 

WC 9 0 9 

GP 8 0 8 

EC 7 0 7 

NW 4 17 21 

NC 0 8 8 

MP 2 3 5 

LP 0 15 15 

Total 37 45 82 

    
A total of 37 cases were postponed for the period under review and 45 adjournments took place.  

 
Active Inquiry by Arbitrator 
 

Province 2020/2021 

FS 4 

MP 0 

NC 0 

WC 1 

EC 2 

NW 1 
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Province 2020/2021 

KZN 4 

GP 2 

LP 3 

Total 17 

  
The Council received 17 IBA cases which are being dealt with in terms of Collective Agreement No. 3 of 2018. 
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2.2 TRAINING OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION PRACTITIONERS AND PANELLISTS 
 

2.2.1. PANELLISTS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION PRACTITIONERS (DRPs) PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Council conducted professional training of Dispute Resolution Practitioners (Employee Representative) on Collective Agreement No. 3 of 
2018 as follows: 
 

 Eastern Cape on 12th March 2021 
 
The Council also trained intermediaries on Child Witness and the Arbitration hearing as follows: 

 Session 1 on 16th March 2021 

 Session 2 on 23rd March 2021 
 
All trainings took place virtually through Zoom. 
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PROGRAMME 3 CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Programme 3 is to provide support services to the core operational functions of the Council, to ensure that it delivers an efficient 
and effective service on its mandates.   
 
Sub-programmes: 

 Mobilising Employee Services 

 Communication Services 

 Information Communication Technology (ICT) 
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To professionalise the ELRC by investing in human capital 

 To promote the corporate image of the ELRC 

 To ensure the continuous availability, reliability, effectiveness and efficiency of ICT systems 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Human Resources 
 

Human Resources 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 4th  Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th  Quarter 

Deviation from planned target 
to Actual Achievement for 4th    

Quarter  

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Building capacity by ensuring 
that employees are trained and 
developed. 
 

9 employees to 
participate in skills 
development and 
provide proof of 
attendance. 

1 employee to participate 
in skills development and 
provide proof of 
attendance  
 

Achieved 
 
1 employee attended a 
Leadership Programme 
 

None   
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Human Resources 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/2021 

Planned Target 
For 4th  Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th  Quarter 

Deviation from planned target 
to Actual Achievement for 4th    

Quarter  

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Monitor and manage the 
Performance Management 
System 

Collate and verify 
completeness of 
the performance 
contracts and 
assessments as 
per the timeframes 
provided  
 
 
 

Prepare and submit a 
quarterly Moderation 
Committee report to the 
General Secretary within 
a month after the 
Moderation Committee 
meeting 

Achieved 
 
A report was submitted to 
the General Secretary 
 

None    

Management of Compensation 
and benefits for all staff 

Maintain accurate 
and complete 
payroll Masterfile 
and database 
 
 

Maintain accurate and 
complete payroll 
Masterfile and database 

Achieved 
 
The payroll processing for 
all staff was accurately 
completed and monitored 
for the quarter under 
review 
 

None   

Provide Wellness programmes 
to employees 

Conduct six (6) 
Employee 
Wellness 
programmes per 
annum as per the 
annual plan 

One (1) employee 
wellness programmes to 
be conducted during the 
quarter 

Achieved 
 
Employees were provided 
with a financial fitness 
workshop by FNB 

None  
 

  

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
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Research & Media 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Research & Media 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Advertising and 
marketing to improve the 
image of the council 

 

Conduct advertising 
campaigns in line with 
Marketing Plan for 
2020/21 to market the 
Council 

 

Marketing of Council 
services and 
developments in Labour 
Bulletin & New 
Negotiator  
 
 

 

Achieved 
 
The Year-in-Review 
edition of the New 
Negotiator and Labour 
Bulletin was published 
and disseminated on 2nd 
February 2021 

 

None  

 
  

   Marketing on social 
media platforms  
 
There following posts 
were made on the 
Council’s social media 
pages:  

 4th to 30th 
January 2021 
– Messages of 
condolence   

 3rd February 
2021 – Links 
to ELRC 
publications  

 11th February 
2021 – 
International 
Day of 
Women and 
girls in 
Science 

None    
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Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

 20th February 
2021 – World 
Justice Day  

 21st February 
2021 – 
International 
Mother 
Tongue Day  

 22nd February 
2021 – 
Message to 
the class of 
2020  

 8th March 
2021 – 
International 
Women’s Day  

 12th March 
2021 – ELRC 
new website 
launch  

 1st December 
30th March 
2021 – World 
Bipolar Day 
 

Implementation of a 
digitised records 
management solution to 
preserve Council 
records 

Implementation of a 
records management 
solution for Council’s 
physical and electronic 
records 

 

Testing of e-records 
management system 
 
Training of ELRC users 
on e-records 
management system 

 

Achieved  
 
This target was achieved 
in the third quarter.  
In addition to the 
administrators who 
received training in the 
third quarter, Senior 
Managers and Provincial 
Managers were also 
trained on the system in 
the fourth quarter.  

 

None  
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Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
As part of its marketing campaign, the Council increased its visibility through regular postings on its social media platforms throughout the quarter.  
 
The Council’s two external publications on its core functions: Labour Bulletin and New Negotiator, were published and disseminated during the 
period under review.  
 
In relation to records management, the e-records system was tested and updated during the reporting period and the Senior Managers and 
Provincial Managers received training on the system.  
  
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
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Information Communication Technology  
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Information Communications Technology 

Performance Indicator Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual 
Achievement 

4th Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual 

Achievement for 4th   
Quarter 

Comment on deviations Status 

Average of 99.9% of 
network and 90% of 
Business Continuity 
VPN connection of 
severs uptime on a 
daily basis and 
issue a monthly 
report 

ICT network and 
Business Continuity 
VPN connection score 
uptime of severs, 
maintained at average 
of 99.9% and 90% by 
monitoring the 
effectiveness of the 
network and an 
average of 24 hours to 
restore the server and 
issue the report  
 

Monitor network, 
VPN, low disk 
space, memory 
usage and 
bandwidth usage to 
maintain average 
score of 99.9 % of 
network and 90 % 
server uptime using 
network monitoring 
tool and 
preventative 
maintenance and 
ICT services (Sage 
Evolution, DMS 
APP, Emails and 
people) to be 
restored within 24 
hours and issue a 
report 

Achieved  
 
ICT successfully 
maintained the 
average 
performance score 
of 99.9 % of 
network and 90% 
server uptime to 
ensure Business 
Continuity and 
system availability 

None   

Provide evidence of 
ICT governance 
frameworks 
compliance on 
quarterly basis and 
issue the report. 
Draft of revised ICT 
strategy, approval by EXCO 
and delivery on the ICT 
strategy on quarterly basis  
a quarterly basis 

Approved revised ICT 
Strategic Plan policy 
by updating 
governance 
framework on policy 
on quarterly basis and 
issue the report. 

Implementing 
approved revised 
ICT Strategic Plan. 

Achieved  
 
The ICT strategy 
and digital 
transformation plan 
policy was revised 
with ICT 
governance 
frameworks 
Compliance and 
legislations 
 
The revised ICT 
Strategic Plan 

None   
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Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 

 
 Quarterly testing of the DRP was conducted in the quarter under review to ensure business continuity 

 Setup for fail over or secondary domain controller was done to ensure synchronisation with office 355 

 The VIP People and ESS were updated to the latest version 

 The storage capacity for exchange server, file server and Evolution server were increased to ensure optimal performance 
 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance 
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy was 
implemented and 
end-users were 
trained in the 
quarter under 
review, to ensure 
ICT functions 
support Council’s 
corporate strategy 
and objectives 



 

109 
 

Linking performance to budget 

 

Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Corporate Services  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Human Resources 1,871 1,582 289 

Information Technology 637 529 107 

Communication 
Services  

244 4 239 

Total 2,751 2,116 636 
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ANNEXURE B: MOBILISING EMPLOYEE SERVICES 
 
Overview of the Human Resources Department’s performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The quarterly report summarises the Human Resources activities for the quarter under review. The issues that are discussed include recruitment, 
resignations (turnover), vacancies, employment equity, personnel expenditure, training and skills development, employee wellness and employee 
relations.  
 
RECRUITMENT/APPOINTMENTS 
 
One position (ICT Manager) was advertised and the recruitment process is underway. 
 
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS MATTERS 
 
One employee underwent a disciplinary hearing and was sanctioned with one month without pay. This was due to poor performance and it was 
a recurring offence. 
 
FURTHER STUDIES AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 
 
One employee attended a Leadership Programme during the period under review. 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 

The Moderation Committee convened its meeting during the quarter under review and a report of the Performance Assessments for 
the quarter under review was submitted to the General Secretary.  
 
 
 
 



 

111 
 

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS 
 
FNB workshopped employees on financial wellness, during the period under review. This was done to assist staff to manage their finances during 
the COVID-19 pandemic. Furthermore, it was also to educate staff on how to minimise debts and save for the future. 
 
RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENT 
 
One employee tendered a resignation during the period under review. 
 
Leave Report: January to March 2021 
 
Corporate Services 
 

CS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 53 

SICK LEAVE 0 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  0 

 
Office of the CFO 
 

Office of the CFO Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 116 

SICK LEAVE 7 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  0 
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Executive Services 
 

EX Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 29 

SICK LEAVE 1 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  0 

 
Dispute Management Services 
 

DMS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 56 

SICK LEAVE 2 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  3 

STUDY  0 

 
Collective Bargaining Services 
 

CBS Days Taken 

ANNUAL LEAVE 121 

SICK LEAVE 45 

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY  0 

STUDY  0 
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Personnel cost by programme 
 

Programme 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

 Total 
Expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000)  

Personnel exp. 
as a % of total  
exp. (R’000) 

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R14,650  R18,940  77% 19 R 771 

Dispute Management Services R4,782  R10,889  44% 7 R 683 

Corporate Services R6,204  R9,005  69% 8 R 776 

Office of the CFO R8,633  R11,952  72% 17 R 508 

Executive Services R6,660  R7,574  88% 5 R 1,332 

Total R40,930  R58,359  70% 56   

 
Personnel cost by salary band 
 

Level 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of 
personnel exp. 

to total 
personnel cost  

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Top Management R3,682  9% 2 R1,841  

Senior Management R4,719  12% 3 R1,573  

Professional qualified/Managers R15,404  38% 14 R1,100  

Skilled/Officers R15,479  38% 31 R499  

Semi-skilled/ Clerks R897  2% 2 R448  

Unskilled/General  R750  2% 4 R187  

Total R40,930  100% 56   
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Training Costs 
 

Programme 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure Training exp. as 

a % of Personnel  
cost  

No. of 
employees 

Average training 
cost per employee 

(R’000) (R’000) 

Collective Bargaining R14,650 R0  0.0% 19 R0  

Dispute Resolution R4,782 R0  0.0% 7 R0  

Corporate Services R6,204 R39  0.1% 8 R5  

Office of the CFO R8,633 R0  0.0% 17 R0  

Executive Services R6,660 R0  0.0% 5 R0  

Total R40,930  R39  0.1% 56   

 
 
Employment levels per programme 
 

Programme 

2020/2021 
Approved 

Posts 

2020/2021 2020/2021 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Executive Office 6 5 1 17% 

Collective Bargaining 21 19 2 10% 

Corporate Services 8 8 1 0% 

Office of the CFO 17 17 0 0% 

Dispute Management Services 8 7 0 13% 

TOTAL 60 56 4 7% 
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Employment and vacancies per level 
 

Programme 

2020/2021 
Approved 

Posts 

2020/2021 2020/2021 

% of 
vacancies 

No. of 
Employees Vacancies 

Top Management 2 2 0 0% 

Senior Management 4 3 1 25% 

Professional qualified 17 14 3 18% 

Skilled  31 31 0 0% 

Semi-skilled 3 2 0 0% 

Unskilled 3 4 0 0% 

TOTAL 60 56 4 7% 

 
Employment Changes 
 

Salary Band Employment 
at beginning 

of period 

Appointments  Terminations  Transfers Employment at 
end of the period 

Top Management 2 0 0 0 2 

Senior Management 4 0 1 0 3 

Professional qualified 15 0 1 0 14 

Skilled  31 0 0 0 31 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 2 

Unskilled 4 0 0 0 4 

Total 58 0 2 0 56 
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Reasons for staff leaving 
 

Reason 
Number 

% of total no. 
of staff leaving 

Death 2 3% 

Resignation 1 2% 

Dismissal 0 0% 

Retirement 0 0% 

Ill health 0 0% 

Expiry of contract 0 0% 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 0 

0% 

Total 3 5% 

 
Labour Relations Issues 
 

Nature of disciplinary Action Number  

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 0 

Final Written warning 0 

Demotion 0 

Disciplinary 1 

Dismissal 0 

Grievances 0 

Other (Termination by mutual 
agreement) 0 

Total 1 
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Equity targets 
 

Levels                   

MALE                 
  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN   WHITE 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Target Current Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 28 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Levels                   

FEMALE                 

  AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN   WHITE 

  Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Target Current Target 

Top Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 3 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Skilled  14 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 22 0 3 0 1 0 0 2 0 
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Levels Disabled Staff 

  Male  Female 

  Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 1 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 1 0 0 0 

TOTAL 1 0 1 0 
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PROGRAMME 4 FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Finance is to provide reliable, accurate and comparable financial information that assist users of financial statements to make 
appropriate decisions. 

 
The purpose of Supply Chain Management services is to ensure that contracts for goods and services, are done in accordance with a system 
which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective as per section 217 of RSA Constitution.  
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Finance and Administration 

 Demand management  

 Database (suppliers) management  

 Contract management  

 Procurements and acquisitions 

 Assets management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To ensure sound financial management and reporting discipline in terms of section 53 of the LRA 

 To provide procurement and provisioning functions in the ELRC into and integrated SCM function 

 To provide sound asset management which includes safeguarding and maintenance of the ELRC assets 

 Take effective and appropriate steps to prevent unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
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Finance  
 
Finance        

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter  

Actual Achievement 4th    
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 4th   
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

Achieve unqualified 

audit opinion from 

external audit at year 

end 

Achieve 

unqualified audit 

opinion from 

external audit at 

year end 

Produce 1 accurate 
and timeous 
quarterly financial 
statements within 
the month after the 
end of the reporting 
quarter 

Achieved 
 
Produced 1 accurate 
and timeous 
quarterly financial 
statements within 
the month after the 
end of the reporting 
quarter 

 

None    

  Produce 2 accurate 
monthly financial 
statements within 
the month after the 
end of the reporting 
month 

Achieved 

 

Two (2) month’s accurate 

financial statements were 

produced within a month after 

the end of the reporting month 

 

None   

An approved accurate 

and comprehensive 

MTEF Budget 

FY2021/22 and Mid-

Year review of the 

budget FY2020/21 

An approved 

accurate and 

comprehensive 

MTEF Budget 

FY2021/22 and 

Mid-Year review 

of the budget 

FY2020/21 

Approved FY2020/21 
Mid-Year budget  
 

Achieved 

 

FY2021/22 – MTEF budget was 

approved on 18th February 2021 

None   

  Produce accurate 
quarterly budget 
variance within the 
month after the end 
of the reporting 
quarter 

Achieved 

 

Produced accurate 
quarterly budget 
variance within the 
month after the end 
of the reporting 
quarter 

 

None  
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Finance        

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter  

Actual Achievement 4th    
Quarter  

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 4th   
Quarter  

Comment on deviations  Status  

  Produce 2 accurate 
monthly budget 
variance reports 
within the month 
after the end of the 
reporting month 

Achieved  

 

Two (2) month’s accurate 

budget variance reports were 

produced within a month after 

the end of the reporting month 

None   

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  

 
The unit prepared financial statements for the months of January and February 2021. The related monthly budget variance reports were also 
distributed in line with the APP targets. The financial statements and the budget reports were reviewed and comments were taken into 
consideration for preparation of the quarterly financial report.  
 
The budget for the MTEF period for 2022 to 2024 was presented and approved by the Executive Committee on 18th February 2021. This 
budget was loaded on the financial system by 31st March 2021.  

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  

 
Not applicable. 
 
Changes to planned targets  
  
No changes were made to planned targets.   
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Supply Chain Management Services 
 
Key performance indicators planned targets and actual achievements 

 
Supply Chain Management Services  

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter  

Actual Achievement   
4th  Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 4th  
Quarter 

Comment on deviations  Status  

Complete and accurate 

Fixed Assets register 

(FAR) at the end of the 

year 

Maintain a 
complete and 
accurate Fixed 
Assets Register 
(FAR) as at year 
end for inclusion 
in the Annual 
Financial 
Statements 

Update the Fixed 
Assets Register and 
Produce a complete 
FAR for the quarter 
for inclusion in the 
Financial 
Statements  

 

Achieved 

 

The Fixed Assets Register was 
updated for inclusion in the 
Financial Statements 

None   
 

Perform an annual 
fixed assets 
verification by 31st 
March 2021 

 

Achieved 

 

Asset verifications was 

performed and completed by 

31st March 2021 

 

None   
 

Produce a Report for 

Irregular, Unauthorised, 

Fruitless and Wasteful 

expenditure year-on-year 

Monitoring and 
reporting on 
Irregular, 
Unauthorised, 
Fruitless and 
Wasteful 
Expenditure to 
management 
and Finance 
department for 
disclosure 
purposes in the 
financial 
statements 
 

Produce a report for 
Irregular, 
Unauthorised, Fruitless 
and Wasteful 
expenditure for the 
quarter 

Achieved 

 

A report for Irregular, 

Unauthorised, Fruitless and 

Wasteful expenditure for the 

quarter was produced 

None   
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Supply Chain Management Services  

Performance  
Indicator  

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter  

Actual Achievement   
4th  Quarter 

Deviation from planned 
target to Actual  

Achievement for 4th  
Quarter 

Comment on deviations  Status  

Monitoring of the contract 

management system to 

ensure compliance to 

procurement policy 

Monitoring of the 
contract 
management 
system to 
ensure 
compliance with 
SCM policy and 
procedures 

Produce report on 
contract monitoring 
activities year to date. 

Achieved   

 

The Report on Contract 
monitoring activities year-to-
date was produced 

None   
 

Procurement in line with 
the 
Organisational 

Procurement Plan for 

2020/21 

Execution of the 
departmental 
procurement in 
line with the 
approved 
Procurement 
Plan for 2020/21 

Produce Quarterly 
Report on the 
approved Procurement 
Plan for 2020/21 

Achieved 
 
Quarterly report of the approved 
Procurement Plan for 
2020/21 was produced for the 

period under review 

None   
 

 
Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year  

 
The monthly reports on commitments are compiled and circulated to management for monitoring. 
 
Fixed Assets Management 
 
Fixed Asset Register is reviewed monthly for any changes in the Councils Assets. The year-end asset verification has been completed and 
Inventory Lists are being updated.  
 
Additions for the quarter: There was one addition in the FAR, which is the procurement of a laptop for the Manager Northern Cape.  
 
Monitoring of Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure 
 
Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure report is compiled and being monitored. No Irregular, Unauthorised Expenditure 
cases were reported during the quarter under review. However, there were two cases of Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure reported and were 
investigated and monies were recovered. There were two long outstanding cases that were pursued with the relevant external stakeholders. One 
of these was recovered, while for the other a request for condonation was submitted and approved. 
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Acquisition Management  

 

1. Procurement Plan – Tenders 

a. For 2020/21 FY there was only one tender listed for the Financial Year. This was cancelled and deferred to the new financial year 

(2021-22.) 

2. Procurement Plan – above R50 000 but below R500 000 

a. The Procurement Plan was revised in line with the Budget review. 

b. There was one item listed for the quarter and was cancelled after the review. The two items were deferred from the third quarter. 

In the previous quarter quotations were received for Cyber Security, however, there were disparities and the process will thus be 

finalised in the new financial year.  

 

Contract Management 

 

1. Contracts are closely monitored, and end users are notified of their contracts expiring within six months.  

2. There are eight contracts that are expiring within six months and the end users have been engaged. One was renewed and they relate to 

car rental with Avis. The tender process has been initiated for the Physical Security services, the process will start soon for the other 

contracts. 

3. One new contract was signed during the quarter, but this was for a once off deliverable for Applications Control Review. 

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  

 
Not applicable. 

 
Changes to planned targets  

  
No changes were made to planned targets. 
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Linking performance to budget 

 
Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Finance and Supply 
Chain Management 
Services 

R’000 R’000 R’000 

Supply Chain 
Management 

1,105 872 233 

Finance Administration  2,374 2,140 234 

Total 3,479 3,012 467 
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PROGRAMME 5 EXECUTIVE SERVICES 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of Executive services is to ensure the Council meets its strategic vision which rests on the pillars of its mandate to maintain labour 
peace in public education and extends to the attainment of quality education in public schools, through stakeholder collaboration and support of 
initiatives to restore the image of the teaching profession. 
 
Sub-programmes:  

 Strategic and corporate governance  

 Internal audit and compliance  

 Risk management  
 
Strategic Objectives 
 

 To add value through assessing the tone and risk management culture of the organisation, as well as evaluating and reporting on the 
effectiveness and efficiency of the implementation of management policies. 

 To instil fiscal discipline, sound corporate governance and compliance with regulatory framework. 
 

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements 
 

Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Approved FY2021/22 Internal 
Audit Coverage Plan 

Internal Audit Three-Year 
Rolling Strategic and Annual 
Audit Plan developed and 
approved by the Audit and 
Risk Committee by the 31 
March 

Develop a Three-Year 
Strategic Plan and Annual 
Plan and submit to Audit 
and Risk Committee by the 
31st March 2021 for 
approval 

Achieved 
 
The 2021/22 Audit 
Coverage Plan was 
approved by the Audit and 
Risk Committee 
Chairperson on 31st March 
2021 

None   
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Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

 

Quarterly audit monitoring 
reports submitted to 
management and Audit and Risk 
Committee 

Execution of 100% quarterly 
audits engagements and issue 
audit reports 

Execution of 100% of the 
first quarterly planned audits 
and ad-hoc engagements 
and issue audit reports 

Achieved 
 
Five (5) planned assurance 
audit engagements were 
finalised and reports were 
issued 
 
Three (3) follow-up planned 
audit engagements were 
finalised and reports were 
issued 
 
Three (3) mandatory 
quarterly reports were 
issued 
 
One (1) Ad hoc 
engagement was done and 
report issued 
 

None    

Audit reports to be tabled at 
the quarterly Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 

Achieved 
 
All 4th quarter audit reports 
were shared with the Audit 
and Risk Committee 
members and tabled at the 
quarterly  Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 
 

None   

Provide objective assurance on 
the adequacy and effectiveness 
of risk management processes 

Annual Risk Assessment 
Report developed by the 31 
March, submitted to the Audit 
and Risk Committee for 
approval 

Develop an Annual Risk 
Assessment Report and 
submit to the Audit and Risk 
Committee by the 31 March 
2021 for approval 

Achieved 
 
The 2021/22 Risk 
Assessment Report and 
Risk Register was approved 
by the Audit and Risk 
Committee Chairperson on 
the 31st March 2021 
 

None   
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Executive Services 

Internal Audit       

Programme Performance 
Indicator 

Annual Target 
2020/21 

Planned Target 
For 4th Quarter 

Actual Achievement 
4th Quarter 

Deviation from 
planned target to 

Actual Achievement 
for 4th Quarter 

Comment on 
deviations 

Status 

Annual Risk Monitoring Report 
submitted to Management and 
Audit and Risk Committee 

Quarterly Risk Register 
monitoring report submitted 
to the Audit and Risk 
Committee at the quarterly 
meeting 
 

Achieved 
 
The Quarterly Risk Report 
was issued and tabled at 
the quarterly Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting 
 

None   

 
 

Overview of performance for the fourth quarter of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
The Internal Audit Function undertook and issued reports for the following engagements in line with the 2020/21 Approved Audit Plan: 
 
Assurance Services: Audits Projects 

 

 Financial Internal Controls 

 PELRC Northern Cape  

 PELRC Limpopo 

 CBS National 

 PELRC Mpumalanga 

Follow-Up Reviews 
 

 External Audit Management report 

 Prior Internal Audit reports 

 Asset Management 
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Quarterly Mandatory Reviews 
 

 Quarterly Performance Information Report 

 Review of the 2021/22 ELRC Annual Performance Plan 

 Compliance Checklist 

 Risk Monitoring Report 
 
Ad-Hoc 
 

 Review of the Validity of Tax Clearance Certificates - completed 

 Application Controls Review – in progress 

 

2021/22 Internal Audit Planning 
 

 Internal Audit Coverage Plan 

 Risk Assessment Survey Report (Risk Register) 

 
Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance  
 
Not applicable.  
 
Changes to planned targets 
 
No changes were made to planned targets. 
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Linking performance to budget 

 
Jan 2021 – Mar 2021 

Programme Name Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Executive Services R’000 R’000 R’000 

Financial 
Management and 
Compliance 
Services 

2,433 1,594 839 

Total 2,433 1,594 839 
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Robot Indicator Status for performance tables: 
 

Status Colour 

Not Achieved  

50% or more of target achieved, supported by 
evidence 

 

Target fully achieved  

Default status of an indicator (White)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

132 
 

PROGRAMME 6  FINANCIAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
REPORT OF THE CFO 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2021 

 
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Non - Current Assets 
 
Total asset additions of R739 838 were made during the period under review to property, equipment of which 94% (R694 588) was for 
improvements made to the National office to comply with COVID-19 regulations, the remaining amount was for computer software. The procured 
items were budgeted for and they are in the approved procurement plan for the 2020/21 financial year. The purchases were made to achieve the 
administration objectives of the Council.   
 
Therefore, the total carrying amount of non-current assets as at the end of the reporting period is R26.5-million, compared to the R29.3-million 
carrying amount at the end of March 2020. An amount of R3.5-million (2020: R3-million) has been expensed as depreciation and amortisation in 
both comparable periods.      
 
Current Assets 
 
Trade and other receivables decreased by 15% to R833 698 (2020: R978 151), the decrease is mainly due to refunds received for the flight 
tickets which were due to the Council during the 2019/20 financial year.  
 
Total cash and cash equivalents reported as at the end of the fourth quarter is R193-million compared to R171-million of the comparable period. 
This movement indicates an increase of R21.7-million (13%). The Council retained more funds than in the previous year because most of the 
core operations were performed without needing to use cash funding. 
 
Liabilities   
 
Trade and other payables increased by 2% to R4-million (2020: R3.9-million). This increase is on par with the figure recognised in the prior year. 
The trade and other payables amount represent only accounts for liabilities known as at the time of closing the books at the end of the quarter. 
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The figure for accruals will change in the annual reporting, as the Council is continuously receiving and processing invoices relating to the previous 
financial year.  
 
Provisions is reported at R1.2-million, which is the same as the amount reported in the previous financial year. There has been no claim from 
SADTU for reimbursement of expenses for the financial year 2019/20.  
 
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Income  
 
Income from levies is reported at R74.3-million, this reported amount is on par with the amount reported in the comparable period. Other income 
received has decreased by 44% to R6.4-million, compared to R11.4-million reported in the prior year. This decrease is mainly attributable to low 
interest earned from the money invested with the Reserve Bank and the main operating account.  
 
The balance of the other income is made up of money received by Council for penalties levied against Panellists for late submission of invoices 
and well as receipts from EDTP-SETA for skills development.    
 
Expenditure 
 
Total expenditure is reported at R61.9-million compared to R74.5-million in 2020. The decrease is mainly due to restrictions in terms of the 
operations of the Council, due to COVID-19. This resulted in a decrease in the following expense line items: meeting refreshments, DMS core 
operating costs, travel and accommodation. The money has been spent in line with the approved Council’s Annual Performance Plan.   
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The total surplus for the 12 months ended 31st March 2021, is reported at R18.8-million (2020: R11-million).  
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6.1: FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

THE EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL 
(Established in terms of the Labour Relations Act, 1995 [Act No: 66 of 1995]) 
HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

 
The actual income collected during the period under review amounted to R20-million (2020: R21-million), which is 6% less than the projected 
income of R21.2-million. Other income collection is lower than projected by 36%. This decrease is mainly attributable to lower interest rate earned 
on the funds invested with the Reserve Bank. 
 
On year to date comparison, there is 5% under collection of total income. This variance is reasonably accepted as we can never accurately 
predict other income patterns.  
 
Total Expenditure 
 

1. Dispute Management Services 
 
The DMS approved budget for the quarter, is R4.9-million and the actual utilisation is R3.6-million. There is an under expenditure of R1.4-
million (28%), compared to the R3.8-million spent in the prior year. The under expenditure is mainly due to the following reasons: 
 

1.1. Fewer cases were scheduled, heard, and invoiced for in the fourth quarter therefore that affects the spending on core 
operations (expenditure).  A total saving of R1.1-million can be seen on core expenses (Arbitration, Condonation, Quality 
control on awards and Conciliation).   

1.2. Of the R300 000 budgeted for legal fees, only R144 679 was spent resulting in a saving of R155 322. 
1.3. There is also a saving of R320 826 on the employee cost budget due to the vacancy of the Manager DMS.   
1.4. No training was conducted during the period under review, resulting in a saving of R570 411 on the budget line item.  

 
The programme spending is in line with the programme’s targets. The Unit has achieved 83% of its performance targets. 
 
In comparison to the annual budget, the total spending is R10.9-million, which translates to 55% utilisation of the annual budget of R18.7-
million.  
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2. Collective Bargaining Services 

 
2.1. Collective Bargaining Services: National 

 
Overall actual spending is reported at R3.5-million (61%) of the allocated budget of R5.7-million, compared to the prior year 
reported spending of R4.9-million. There is an under expenditure of R2.2-million against the allocated budget for the period 
under review.  

 
The saving is mainly due to the amount not spent for fulltime shop stewards. This amount is spent as and when the DBE 
identify a program where the funds will be utilised. The travel restrictions implemented by government due to the COVID-19 
pandemic also contributed to the savings. 

 
The programme spending is mainly on administrative expenses, which are is in line with the planned programme’s targets. 
The Unit has achieved 100% of its performance targets.   

 
In comparison to the annual budget, the total spending is R16.5-million, which translates to 68% utilisation of the annual budget 
of R24.3-million.  

 
2.2. Collective Bargaining Services: Provincial Chambers 

 
Overall actual spending is reported at R612 196 (56%) against the budget of R1.1-million, while the spending for the prior year 
was reported at R825 665.  

 
The variance of 44% is mainly because most of the provincial bargaining and consultation meetings were held virtually due to 
the COVID-19 restrictions placed on the organisation’s operations.   

 
The provincial spending on administrative expenses is in line with the planned targets per province. The provincial chambers 
have achieved 93% of their performance targets.   

 
In comparison to the annual budget, the total spending is R2.4-million, which translates to 55% utilisation of the annual budget of R4.3-
million.  
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3. Administration Support Services 

 
Executive Services 
 

Overall actual spending is reported at R1.6-million, this is 35% below the allocated budget of R2.4-million, while the spending for the 
prior year was reported at R1.8-million for the same period. There is an under expenditure of R839 461 to the allocated budget.  
 
The overall under expenditure is mainly due to the following:  

 The underspending is on consulting and legal fees   

 There is also a saving of R359 767 on the employee cost budget due to the vacancy of the Manager IA  

The programme spending is on administrative expenses in support of the core programmes of the Council. This spending is in line with 
the unit’s planned targets for the quarter. The Unit has achieved 100% of its performance targets.   
  
Corporate Services  
 

Actual spending is reported at R2.1-million (77%) of the allocated budget of R2.8-million, compared to prior year reported expense of 
R2.6-million. There is an under expenditure of 23% to the allocated budget.   
 
The overall under expenditure is mainly due to the following:  

 The budget for Media and Communication is underutilised, as no marketing and advertising activities took place during the quarter  

 No employee wellness programmes that required funding took place during the quarter under review.  
 
The programme spending is line with the performance targets and the administrative expenses in support of the core programmes of the 
Council. The Unit’s overall achievement is recorded at 100% of its performance targets.   

 
Finance and Supply Chain Management Services  
 
Actual spending for the period is reported at R3-million against the allocated budget of R3.5-million, while the spending for the prior year 
was reported at R3-million.  
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 There is a saving on the SCM administration budget on cleaning, consumables, electricity, and vehicle maintenance. This is due 
to the restrictions placed on the activities of the organisation as staff mainly worked remotely  

 The budget for Finance administration has been underspent on consulting as only one consultation session was held during the 
quarter 
 

The programme spending is in support of the core programmes of the Council. The unit has achieved 100% of its performance targets.   
 
In comparison to annual budget, the total spending on administration support services is R28.5-million, which translates to 82% utilisation 
of the annual budget of R34.9-million. 

 
4. Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful report 

 
No new cases of Irregular and Unauthorised expenditure were reported during the period under review. 

 
The Fruitless and wasteful expenditure balance of R6 868 has been carried over from the prior year. R12 831 was incurred during the 
quarter and R1 260 has been recovered. Therefore, the balance at the end of the period is R11 572, which was recovered in April 2021. 

 
5. Procurement – Tenders 

 
No tenders were evaluated and awarded during the period under review.  

 
Conclusion 
 
Overall, the Council reports expenditure of R14.4-million, including CAPEX, which translates to 69% utilisation of the allocated quarterly budget 
of R21-million and the annual budget (R85.6-million) is underutilised by 31%.     
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PROGRAMME 6.2: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDUCATION LABOUR RELATIONS COUNCIL 
(Registration number LR2/6/6/110) 

 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021

Mar-21 Mar-20

Notes R R

Assets

Non-Current Assets 26,549,189 29,321,163

Property and equipment 2 24,813,719 26,320,995

Intangible assets 3 1,735,470 3,000,168

Current Assets 193,357,398 171,724,008

Trade and other receivables 4 833,698 978,151

Cash and cash equivalents 5 192,523,700 170,745,857

Total Assets 219,906,587 201,045,171

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Retained surplus 214,671,181 195,866,715

Liabilities

Current Liabilities 5,235,406 5,178,456

Trade and other payables 6 4,021,031 3,938,934

Provisions 7 1,214,375 1,239,522

Total Equity and Liabilities 219,906,587 201,045,171
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for period ended 31 March 2021

Description Mar-20 Mar-20

Notes R R

Revenue 8 74,272,139 74,121,858

Other Income 9 6,403,590 11,442,661

Operating Expenditure 20 (61,871,254) (74,542,987) 

Operating surplus for the year 18,804,475   11,021,532   
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Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2021

Retained 

surplus
Total equity

R R

Balance at 01 April 2019 184,845,174 184,691,082

Total comprehensive surplus for the year 11,021,532   11,021,532   

Balance at 01 April 2020 195,866,706 195,866,706

Total comprehensive surplus for the year 18,804,475   18,804,475   

Balance at 31 March 2021 214,671,181 214,671,181
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Statement of Cash Flows as at 31 March 2021

Mar-21 Mar-20

Notes R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers 74,252,233 74,058,650

Cash paid to suppliers and employees   (51,734,552)    (61,404,533)

Net cash from operating activities 14 22,517,681 12,654,117

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 2 (694,588)       (578,906)        

Disposal of property and equipment 2 -                35,460           

Purchase of intangible assets 3 (45,250)         (3,596,473)     

Net cash from investing activities (739,838)       (4,139,919)     

Increase in cash and cash 

equivalents for the year 21,777,843   8,514,198      

Cash at the beginning of the year 170,745,857 162,231,659

Total cash at the end of the year 5 192,523,700 170,745,857
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Accounting Policies for the period ended 31 March 2021 

1. Presentation of financial statements 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SME’s) 
and the Labour Relations Act, 66 of 1995 as amended. The financial statements have 
been prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate the principal accounting 
policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands. 
 
These accounting policies have been amended to be compliant with the reporting  
framework of IFRS for SME’s. 
 
1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
Useful lives of property and equipment 
 
The Council reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment when 
changing circumstances indicate that they may have changed since the most recent 
reporting date. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best 
information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates are included in note 
7 - Provisions. 
 
 
1.2 Land 
 
Land is not depreciated, and it is stated at cost.  
 
 
1.3 Property and equipment 
 
Property and equipment are tangible items that: 

 are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to 
others or for administrative purposes; and 

 are expected to be used during more than one period. 
 
Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Cost includes all costs incurred to bring the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property and 
equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If 
a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
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Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost over 
the useful life of the property and equipment, which is as follows:  

 
Item Depreciation 

method 
Average useful life in 
years 

Buildings  Straight line 25 

Lifts Straight line 25 

Generators Straight line 25 

Furniture and fittings Straight line 10 

Motor vehicles Straight line 7 

Office equipment Straight line 8 to 10 

Computer equipment Straight line 3 

Leasehold improvements Straight line 5 

The depreciation method and useful life of each asset are reviewed at each reporting 
date if there are indicators present that there has been a significant change from the 
previous estimate.  

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the 
carrying amount and are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period. 

1.4 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, 
to their residual values as follows: 

 
Item Depreciation method Average useful life in 

years 

Systems (operational) software Straight line 3 

Application software Straight line 8 

The amortisation period and amortisation method for intangible assets are 
reassessed when there is an indication that there is a change from the previous 
estimate. 

1.5 Financial instruments 

Initial measurement 
 
Financial instruments are initially measured at the transaction price (including 
transaction costs except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities 
that are measured at fair value through profit or loss) unless the arrangement 
constitutes, in effect, a financing transaction in which case it is measured at the 
present value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a 
similar debt instrument. 
 
Financial instruments at amortised cost  
 
These include loans, trade receivables and trade payables. Those debt instruments 
which meet the criteria in section 11.8(b) of the Standard, are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Debt instruments which are 
classified as current assets or current liabilities are measured at the undiscounted 
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amount of the cash expected to be received or paid unless the arrangement effectively 
constitutes a financing transaction.  
 
At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of assets held in this category are 
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. If there 
is objective evidence, the recoverable amount is estimated and compared with the 
carrying amount. If the estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount 
is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised 
immediately in surplus or deficit. 

1.6 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee. All other leases are operating leases. 

Operating leases – lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term unless: 

 another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the benefit 
from the leased asset, even if the payments are not on that basis, or 

 the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation (based on published indices or statistics) to compensate for the 
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 

1.7 Impairment of assets 

The council assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that 
property and equipment or intangible assets may be impaired. 

If there is any such indication, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group 
of related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If the estimated 
recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated 
recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or 
deficit. 

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
group of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, 
but not in excess of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (or group of assets) in prior years. A reversal of 
impairment is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

1.8 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the 
service is rendered, such as leave pay, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as 
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are 
not discounted. 
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Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense 
as they fall due. 

1.9 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when the Council has an obligation at the reporting date 
as a result of a past event; it is probable that the Council will be required to transfer 
economic benefits in settlement; and the amount of the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the amount expected to be required 
to settle the obligation using a rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.  

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.  

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events that are beyond the control of the entity. 

Alternatively, a contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events 
but is not recognised because: 

 It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or 

 The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the 
amounts disclosed is based on the expected possible outflows of economic benefits 
should there be a present obligation.  
 
Contingent assets 

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that are not 
wholly within the control of the entity and give rise to the possibility of an inflow of 
economic benefits or service potential to the entity.  
 

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes. The estimation of the amounts 
disclosed is based on the expected possible inflows of economic benefits or service 
potential to the entity. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised as provisions as the 
recognition criteria for provisions is not met. 

1.10 Revenue 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the Council has transferred the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer, or has rendered services under 
an agreement provided the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
council. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and discounts.  
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Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.  

1.11  Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred. 
 

1.12 Presentation of Budget information 

The Council discloses a comparison of the budget and actual amount in the primary 
financial statements.  
 
1.13  Related Parties 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other 
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and 
operating decisions; or if the related party entity and another party are subject to 
common control.  

Related parties include individuals who have significant influence over the entity, such 
as members of the Executive Committee (EXCO), its committees and key 
management personnel.  

All transactions between the entity and related parties during the reporting period as 
well as comparative information are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial 
statements. 
 
1.14 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the Public Finance Management Act 
(PFMA) is expenditure other than recognised expenditure, incurred in contravention 
of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, 
including: 

 Public Finance Management Act; 1999 (Act No1 of 1999) or  

 The State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No.86 of 1968), or any 
regulations made in terms of this Act; and 

 Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that 
provincial government 

Irregular expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy. 
 
1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure which is made in vain and 
would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Where an investigation determines, a receivable will be recorded against an employee 
who has been found to have incurred the fruitless and wasteful expenditure. In 
instances where a receivable is not raised against an employee or the amount is 
irrecoverable, the General Secretary may write off the debt. Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure identified is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply 
Chain Management Policy. 
 
1.16 Unauthorised expenditure  

Unauthorised expenditure refers to overspending of the budget approved or 
expenditure not in accordance with the purpose, strategic objective and mandate of 
the Council. 

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised 
expenditure. 

Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for in terms of the Council’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 Mar 2021 

 
 

 

Note 2 

Property and equipment Mar-21 Mar-20

Cost
Accumulated 

depreciation
Carrying Value Cost

Accumulated 

depreciation
Carrying Value

Land 1,000,000 -                      1,000,000 1,000,000 -                    1,000,000

Buildings 33,433,263 (12,146,175)        21,287,088 32,847,221 (10,821,648)      22,025,573

Generators 599,576 (135,330)             464,246 599,576 (111,363)           488,213

Lifts 702,669 (143,593)             559,076 702,669 (115,505)           587,164

Furniture and fittings 2,416,073 (1,943,816)          472,257 2,416,073 (1,832,638)        583,435

Motor vehicles 499,000 (419,499)             79,501 499,000 (355,386)           143,614

Office equipment 802,476 (468,099)             334,377 802,476 (391,436)           411,040

Computer equipment 4,089,786 (3,472,612)          617,174 4,041,651 (2,959,695)        1,081,956

43,542,843 (18,729,124)        24,813,719 42,908,666 (16,587,671)      26,320,995

Reconciliation of property and equipment 31 March 2021

Opening 

Balance
Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 1,000,000           -                       -                     -                       1,000,000

Buildings 22,025,573         586,042           -                     (1,324,527)       21,287,088

Generators 488,213              -                       -                     (23,967)            464,246

Lifts 587,164              -                       -                     (28,088)            559,076

Furniture and fittings 583,435              -                       -                     (111,178)          472,257

Motor vehicles 143,614              -                       -                     (64,113)            79,501

Office equipment 411,040              -                       -                     (76,662)            334,378

Computer equipment 1,081,956           108,546           (11,305)          (562,024)          617,173

26,320,995 694,588 (11,305)          (2,190,559)       24,813,719
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Land  
Erf, Die Hoewes Extension 26 Township, Registration Division J.R. Province of Gauteng, in extent 3019 square meters. 

Changes in estimates  

The Council reassesses the useful lives and residual values of items of property and equipment at the end of each reporting period, in line with 
the accounting policy and section 17 Property, plant and equipment. These assessments are based on historic analysis, benchmarking, and the 
latest available and reliable information. 

Computer equipment, office equipment and furniture & fittings that had one year remaining useful life at the beginning of the financial year have 
been reassessed with an additional two years.  

 

 

Reconciliation of property and equipment 31 March 2020

Opening 

Balance
Additions Disposals Depreciation Total

Land 1,000,000           -                       -                     -                       1,000,000

Buildings 23,342,160         -                       -                     (1,316,587)       22,025,573

Generators 512,245              -                       -                     (24,032)            488,213

Lifts 615,328              -                       -                     (28,164)            587,164

Furniture and fittings 653,814              43,539 (2,697)            (111,220)          583,435

Motor vehicles 207,903              -                       -                     (64,289)            143,614

Office equipment 427,858              81,548 (19,705)          (78,661)            411,040

Computer equipment 1,125,408           453,819 (12,895)          (484,375)          1,081,956

27,884,716 578,906 (35,298)          (2,107,329)       26,320,995
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Changes in estimates  
 
At the end of each reporting period, the entity reassesses whether there is any indication that any intangible asset may be impaired, in line with 
the accounting policy and section 18 Intangible Assets. These assessments are based on historic analysis, benchmarking, and the latest 
available and reliable information. 

 

Note 3 

Intangible assets

Cost
Accumulated 

amortisation
Carrying Value Cost

Accumulated 

amortisation
Carrying Value

Software 5,326,238 (3,590,768)          1,735,470 5,280,988 (2,280,820)        3,000,168

Mar-20Mar-21

Reconciliation of intangible assets 31 March 2021

Opening 

Balance
Additions Amortisation Total

Software 3,000,168           45,250             (1,309,948)     1,735,470

Reconciliation of intangible assets 31 March 2020

Opening 

Balance
Additions Amortisation Total

Software 317,186              3,596,473        (913,491)        3,000,168
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Note 4

2021 2020

R R

Accrued income 0 10,092

Deposits 296,119 202,566

Flight ticket refunds * 117,023 217,514

Flight tickets for re-use 5,680 5,680

Other receivables 5,969 62,501

Prepayments 365,942 382,981

Receivable from employees 23,059 33,609

Trade receivables 19,906 63,208

833,698 978,151

Trade and other receivables are not pledged as security. The carrying amount of the 

receivables approximate their fair value.

* Flight tickets refunds are air travel tickets that have been cancelled due unavailability of pre-

booked travellers, the increase is due to the cancellation of international travel.

Trade and other receivables 

Note 5

2021 2020

R R

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 22,956 18,834

Current account 22,907,121 26,938,654

Short term deposits* 169,593,623 143,788,369

192,523,700 170,745,857

No restrictions have been placed on the use of the cash and cash equivalents for the 

operations of the entity. The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

*Short term deposits are held with the South African Reserve Bank (Corporate of Public 

deposits) and bears interest at a rate more competitive than those offered by the big four 

banks. These are made available immediately on call or request. 

Note 6

2021 2020

R R

Trade payables 1,212,677 804,609

Accrued leave pay 1,317,875 1,291,945

Accrued expenses 1,490,479 1,842,380

4,021,031 3,938,934

The carrying amount of the payables approximate their fair value.

Trade and other payables
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Provisions for SADTU comprise of costs to be claimed for services rendered by Parties to Council, for which claims have not been  
received. A reliable estimate is made based on provisions of the Collective Agreement and the number of meetings attended.

Note 7

2021 2020

R R

Provision for 13th cheque 560,621              585,768           

Provision for SADTU 653,754              653,754           

1,214,375 1,239,522

Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions 31 March 2021

Opening 

Balance
Additions Utilised Total

Provision for 13th cheque 585,768              2,713,259        (2,738,406)     560,621           

Provision for SADTU 653,754              -                   -                 653,754           

1,239,522 2,713,259        (2,738,406)     1,214,375

Reconciliation of provisions 31 March 2020

Opening 

Balance
Additions Utilised Total

Provision for 13th cheque 484,757              2,494,381        (2,393,370)     585,768           

Provision for SADTU 1,290,865           -                   (637,111)        653,754           

1,775,622 2,494,381        (3,030,481)     1,239,522
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Note 8

2021 2020

R R

Levies - FETC 2,889,819 2,799,453

Levies - DBE 71,382,320 71,322,405

74,272,139 74,121,858

Revenue

All levies received bear no credit risk and are paid from salary deductions from educators 

and an equal contribution by employer.

2021 2020

R R

Interest income 5,893,268 10,344,566

Penalty income 94,216 272,208

Other income 106,792 539,312

Profit on disposal of assets                           - 162

Rental income 309,314 286,413

6,403,590 11,442,661

Other income

Note 9

Note 10

2021 2020

R R

Basic earnings 32,037,526 30,260,551

13th Cheque 2,494,849 2,470,368

Medical Aid 995,357 977,173

Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF) 103,924 106,930

Skills Development Levy (SDL) 227,796 318,674

Leave pay accrual charge 124,650 289,603

Housing allowance 664,500 946,500

Post retirement benefits 4,281,604 4,288,648

Total cost 40,930,206 39,658,447

Post retirement benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The entity is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.

Employee costs

Total number of employees 56 (2020: 60)

The entity provides retirement benefits through a defined contribution plan to all its 

employees. The Provident Fund and Retirement Annuity Fund are governed by the Pension 

Funds Act, 1956 (Act no 24 of 1956). 

Note 11

Taxation

The Council is exempt from the payment of income tax in terms of section 10(1) (CA) (I) of 

the Income tax Act, No. 58 of 1962.
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Note 12

2021 2020

R R

Disbursements 13,756 37,407

Consulting fees 69,361 90,965

Statutory audit fees 703,371 687,066

786,488 815,438

Auditor’s remuneration

Note 13

2021 2020

R R

Already contracted, but not provided 

for: 

Operating expenditure 3,061,521 4,834,882

3,061,521 4,834,882

Total minimum lease payments

Not later than one year               979,653          1,033,955 

Later than one year and not later than five 

years
279,402 394,258

1,259,054 1,428,213

Commitments

This committed expenditure relates to operating and capital expenses and will be financed by 

available retained surplus. Commitments disclosed takes into consideration clauses as per 

the contractual agreements. 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ELRC for rentals of premises in 

the nine provincial offices. The leases typically run for a period of three to five years, with an 

option to renew. Rental expenses are increased annually as per the escalation clauses of 

the lease agreements.

Note 14

Cash generated from operations 2021 2020

R R

Surplus for the year 18,804,475         11,021,532      

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 3,500,505 3,020,820

(Profit) Loss on disposal of assets 11,305                (162)                 

Movement in provisions (25,147)               (536,100)          

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables 144,453              (245,037)          

Trade and other payables 82,090                (606,936)          

22,517,681         12,654,117      
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Note 15       
   

Related parties       
   

Employer party Department of Basic Education 
   

Chairperson of Council Advocate Luvuyo Bono  
   

Members of key 
management 

Ms Nolusindiso Foca  
   

 Ms Unathi Ndobeni     
 Ms Octavia Makofane  

   
 Mr Matlose Moela  

   
 Mr Frederick Moloisi  

   
 Ms Nelisiwe Bongco  

   

Trade unions South African Democratic Teachers Union (SADTU) 
  

 Combined Trade Union – Autonomous Trade Union (CTU-ATU) 
 

 
Non-Executive members serve in the audit committee of the ELRC. The Audit 
Committee sits for four meetings annually and any other special meetings. 

   
 
Key Management Personnel   

 

Key management information   

Class   Description 
Number of 
members  

Executive members 
 

Accounting 
Authority 

11 

Non-executive members 
 

Accounting 
Authority 

3 

Executive management 

 

Accounting 
Officer & 
Executive 

1 

Senior management   Management  5 

 

 

Related party transactions 

Fees paid to related parties in respect of services rendered

2021 2020

R R

SADTU                       -             637,111 

Advocate L. Bono* 31,000 264,547

31,000 901,658

*This relates to the fees paid for services rendered by the independent Chairperson as a 

panellist in matters of arbitration or dispute resolution. The Chairperson’s decisions in 

dispute resolution and arbitration matters do not affect the financial position of the Council.
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Executive emoluments (Chairperson's fees) 

2021 2020

R R

Advocate L. Bono 175,000 108,000

 

Members of the ELRC Executive committee did not receive emoluments during the financial 

year as per collective agreement. The Board fees to date amount to R 175 000 and were 

only paid to Advocate L. Bono.

Audit Committee fees 2021

Daily fee Expenses Total

Mr SA Ngobeni 60,438                           - 60,438

Ms T Sihlaba 26,190 1,296 27,486

Dr C Motau 20,952                           -               20,952 

107,580 1,296 108,876

Audit Committee fees 2020

Daily fee Expenses Total

Mr SA Ngobeni 38,853 1,193 40,046

Ms T Sihlaba 20,892 717 21,609

Dr C Motau 15,714                           -               15,714 

75,459 1,910 77,369

Non-Executive members serve in the audit committee of the ELRC. The Audit Committee 

sits for four meetings annually and any other special meetings.
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Executive management emoluments

 31 March 2021

Ms NO Foca 1,478,554 118,913 256,851 216,847 32,368 2,103,533

Ms U Ndobeni 1,049,775 85,354 92,182 308,009 29,644 1,564,963

2,528,328 204,267 349,034 524,855 62,012 3,668,496

Provident and 

Retirement 

Fund 

contribution

Other 

allowances*
Total

Travel 

Allowance
Basic salary 13th cheque

 31 March 2020

Ms NO Foca 1,347,870 112,508 242,617 203,784 105,498 2,012,277

Ms U Ndobeni 888,363 53,840 79,952 266,194 12,562 1,300,911

2,236,234 166,348 322,568 469,977 118,060 3,313,188

* Other allowances comprise cash allowance, medical aid fringe benefit, back pay, SDL and UIF.

Provident and 

Retirement 

Fund 

contribution

Basic salary 13th cheque
Travel 

Allowance

Other 

allowances*
Total
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Senior management emoluments

 31 March 2021

Ms LO Makofane 846,772 68,800 148,607 144,875 1,209,054

Ms NA Bongco 835,580 67,815 73,240 268,963 1,245,597

Mr FS Moloisi 787,861 70,361 137,892 47,398 1,043,513

Mr MP Moela 855,138 51,798 150,075 144,005 1,201,016

3,325,351 258,773 509,815 605,242         4,699,180

Total
Other 

allowances*

Provident and 

Retirement 

Fund 

contribution

13th chequeBasic salary

Senior management emoluments 

 31 March 2020

Ms LO Makofane 779,841 65,094 140,371 123,314 1,108,621

Ms NA Bongco 768,674 64,162 86,390 241,193 1,160,420

Mr FS Moloisi 871,465 72,742 156,864 39,591 1,140,663

Mr MP Moela 849,414 71,372 152,895 58,796 1,132,477

3,269,395 273,370 536,520 462,895 4,542,180

* Other allowances comprise cash allowance, medical aid fringe benefit, back pay, SDL and UIF.

Total
Other 

allowances*
13th chequeBasic salary

Provident and 

Retirement 

Fund 

contribution
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Note 16

2020 2019

R R

Opening balance                   6,868                       -   

Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

incurred during the year
16,720 39,666

Less: Recovered during the year (7,816)                 (7,923)              

Less: Written Off during the year (4,200)                 (24,876)            

Closing balance                 11,571                 6,868 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure mainly relates to expenses incurred for a cancelled 

tender. The Council implement improved controls and where fruitless expenditure is 

incurred; such is recovered from the relevant official.	 

Note 17

1. Trade and other payables

2. Accumulated surplus

Prior period error

Trade and other payables decreased due to adjustment made to supplier accruals. This 

arose due to clearing of take-on balance from previous financial years. 

Corrections were made and appropriated to the Accumulated Surplus account during the 

financial year end 31 March 2019.

These corrections resulted in correction of the prior year’s figures and the impact is as follows (current):

2020 2020

Restated Change

Statement of financial position

Trade and other payables -                      -                   -                 

Statement of changes in equity

Accumulated surplus -                      -                   -                 

These corrections resulted in correction of the prior year’s figures and the impact is as follows (2018/19):

2019 2019

Restated Change

Statement of financial position

Trade and other payables 4,545,871           4,699,971        (154,100)        

Statement of changes in equity

Accumulated surplus 167,432,580       167,278,480    154,100         

Previously 

stated

Previously 

stated
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Note 18

Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a 

going concern organisation. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations, 

that the realisation of assets, settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in 

the ordinary course of business.

Note 19

Events after reporting period

No significant events have occurred subsequent to the reporting period.
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Note 20

Notes 2021 2020

Operating expenses R R

Accommodation expenses 11,903 80,172

Administration and management fees 774,104 477,368

Advertising and Recruitment 52,598 966,734

Arbitration 4,898,018 7,315,349

Assets below R5000 9,204 23,354

Auditors fees 12 786,488 815,438

Bank charges 49,542 68,097

Chairperson's fees 15 175,000 108,000

Cleaning and sanitation 69,039 105,290

Computer expenses 326,411 389,848

Conciliation 561,425 1,384,074

Condonation 58,375 107,000

Consulting and professional fees 118,506 373,551

Consumables 42,225 114,139

Cost of quality control  88,500 126,885

Delivery expenses 12,620 37,491

Depreciation, amortisation and

impairment loss
3,500,505 3,020,820

Donations 1,500,000 -                       

Facilitation and Dispute prevention -                          406,853

Dispute Prevention Support - FTSS                           - 3,064,546

Employee related costs 10 40,930,206 39,658,447

Governance and provincial chambers 298,236 2,350,560

Employee wellness and SHE expenses 119,874 141,109

Implementation of Acts and Agreements 13,000 938,557

Insurance 512,205 414,585

International travel expenses          2,585,283 

Legal Expenses 639,691 702,612

Loss on disposal of assets 14                 11,305 -                       

Motor vehicle expenses 26,258 45,692

Municipal expenses 1,308,586 1,284,923

Printing and stationery 380,517 1,114,920

Refreshments 5,758 93,703

Rentals 1,671,563 1,416,881

Repairs and maintenance 551,970 491,371

Security 1,071,668 1,005,140

Storage and removal 2,013 12,010

Subscriptions and license fees 705,265 702,867

Telecommunication costs and postal fees 474,278 454,722

Training 75,400 904,078

Travelling costs 38,998 1,201,190

Workman’s compensation                           - 90,104             

61,871,254 74,593,763
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Education Labour Relations Council

Income Statement for Period Ending 

Mar-21

Actual Budget Variance Variance % Actual Budget Variance Variance % Current 2020/21 Prior 2019/20 Variance Variance %

TOTAL INCOME 80,675,728            84,930,836               4,255,108                 5% 19,970,800           21,232,709           1,261,909            6% 19,970,800            20,934,937           964,137               5%

Revenue 74,272,139 74,070,671 (201,468) -0% 18,228,741 18,517,668 288,927 2% 18,228,741 18,299,886 71,145 0%

Other Income 6,403,589 10,860,165 4,456,576 41% 1,742,059 2,715,041 972,982 36% 1,742,059 2,635,051 892,992 34%

OPERATING EXPENSES 58,359,490            83,258,275               24,898,784               30% 14,359,280           20,378,125           6,018,846            30% 14,359,280            16,921,474           2,562,194            15%

DISPUTE MANAGEMENT SERVICES 10,888,844            19,743,209               8,854,365                 45% 3,560,726            4,935,801            1,375,075            28% 3,560,726              3,763,736            203,009               5%

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING SERVICES 18,939,741            28,614,481               9,674,740                 34% 4,077,406            6,778,700            2,701,294            40% 4,077,406              5,729,539            1,652,134            29%

CBS (NATIONAL) 16,438,352 23,907,435 7,469,082 31% 3,451,338 5,601,859 2,150,522 38% 3,451,338 4,630,492 1,179,155 25%

Governance And Support Services 107,580 364,880 257,300 71% 13,872 91,220 77,348 85% 13,872 273,382 259,510 95%

Chamber Expenses 2,393,809 4,342,166 1,948,358 45% 612,196 1,085,621 473,425 44% 612,196 825,665 213,469 26%

Gauteng 280,782 564,897 284,115 50% 62,186 141,245 79,059 56% 62,186 119,433 57,247 48%

Free State 360,550 550,304 189,754 34% 112,603 137,587 24,984 18% 112,603 84,952 (27,651) -33%

Eastern Cape 338,493 494,793 156,300 32% 82,102 123,706 41,604 34% 82,102 125,157 43,055 34%

Western Cape 237,724 329,040 91,316 28% 60,471 82,260 21,789 26% 60,471 76,056 15,585 20%

Limpopo 291,832 529,596 237,764 45% 69,424 132,399 62,975 48% 69,424 94,425 25,000 26%

Mpumalanga 152,686 329,814 177,128 54% 46,024 82,454 36,430 44% 46,024 54,324 8,300 15%

Northern Cape 238,738 486,135 247,397 51% 56,036 121,536 65,500 54% 56,036 83,617 27,581 33%

North West Province 227,433 391,847 164,414 42% 52,194 97,980 45,786 47% 52,194 62,979 10,785 17%

KwaZulu Natal 265,571 665,740 400,169 60% 71,155 166,454 95,299 57% 71,155 124,723 53,567 43%

CORPORATE SERVICES 9,004,862 11,251,798 2,246,936 20% 2,115,697 2,751,425 635,727 23% 2,115,697 2,637,223 521,525 20%

Media & Communications 126,466 974,133 847,667 87% 4,185 243,536 239,351 98% 4,185 550,275 546,090 99%

Information Communication Technology 2,104,679 2,546,020 441,342 17% 529,438 636,510 107,072 17% 529,438 467,649 (61,789) -13%

Human Resource 6,773,718 7,731,645 957,927 12% 1,582,074 1,871,379 289,305 15% 1,582,074 1,619,299 37,224 2%

FINANCE AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 11,952,460 13,916,221 1,963,761 14% 3,011,769 3,479,056 467,288 13% 3,011,769 2,981,574 (30,194) -1%

Supply Chain Management 3,231,742 4,419,752 1,188,010 27% 871,691 1,104,938 233,247 21% 871,691 915,122 43,431 5%

Financial Accounting Services 8,720,718 9,496,469 775,751 8% 2,140,078 2,374,118 234,040 10% 2,140,078 2,066,452 (73,626) -4%

EXECUTIVE SERVICES 7,573,583 9,732,566 2,158,983                 22% 1,593,682 2,433,143 839,461               35% 1,593,682 1,809,402 215,720               12%

SURPLUS/DEFICIT BEFORE CAPEX 22,316,237 5,611,520 5,611,520 4,013,463

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE (CAPEX) 739,838 2,310,325 1,570,487 68% 16,209 577,581 561,372 97% 16,209 298,584 282,375 95%

SURPLUS/DEFICIT AFTER CAPEX 21,576,399 5,595,311 5,595,311 3,714,879

Quarter 4 - FY2020/21 Quarter 4 ComparisonYTD FY2020/21
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